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2. Corporate Structure

2.1 
Bird River Mines Inc.

Registered and Head offices:

1059 Selkirk Avenue, Winnipeg, Manitoba  R2X 0C2

2.2
 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1The following are the relevant corporate documents relating to BIRD RIVER MINES INC.: (the “Company” or “BRM”)
A.  Letters Patent of Incorporation pursuant to The Companies Act, of Manitoba - March 7, 1958 - incorporating BIRD RIVER CHROMITE MINES LIMITED.




B.  Supplementary Letters Patent pursuant to The Companies Act, of Manitoba - August 16, 1968 - changing the name of the company to BIRD RIVER MINES CO. LTD.

C.  Articles of Revival pursuant to The Corporations Act, of Manitoba - June 30, 1987 - reinstating the company from default status.

D.  Articles of Revival pursuant to The Corporations Act, of Manitoba - December 18, 1995 - reinstating the company from default status.

E.  Articles of Amendment pursuant to The Corporations Act, of Manitoba - March 13, 2000 - allowing the company to “issue an unlimited number of common shares”.

F.  Articles of Amendment pursuant to The Corporations Act, of Manitoba - February 13, 2001 - changing the name of the company to BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

2.3 The Company has no subsidiaries.

2.4 The Company is not proposing an acquisition, amalgamation, merger, reorganization or arrangement.

2.5 
The Company’s constating documents do not differ from Canadian corporate legislation with respect to corporate governance principles.

3.
General Development of the Business
3.1
Bird River Mines Inc. is a mineral exploration company that has largely been inactive since the late 1980’s and is in the process of re-activation.  The Company is a SEDAR-filing, reporting issuer in good standing in Manitoba whose common shares are not currently listed on a stock exchange.  The Company holds an exploration property, known as the Ore Fault, which is located in the Bird River Sill area of Manitoba, approximately 125 km northeast of Winnipeg.  The original 322-hectare property is prospective for base and PGM metals.  On May 16, 2005, the Company expanded its Ore Fault Property by conditionally acquiring the adjacent 124-hectare Lotus Property comprised of 3-claims.
BRM also holds a Quarry Lease, located 85 km southwest of Winnipeg near Miami, Manitoba.  The 8-hectare lease hosts a narrow bed of bentonite. 

The Company also engages in secondary activities, from time to time, involving the purchase or acquisition of certain industrial minerals – typically diatomaceous earth and bentonite – for distribution and re-sale or for use in an abandoned water well sealing operation.

Until the past two years, the junior mineral resource industry experienced an extended period of difficult conditions when it was not possible to finance a full program to re-active the Company.  In 1997, the current management of BRM commenced the re-activation of the Company which resulted in the Manitoba Securities Commission lifting a decades-old cease trading order, on August 10, 1998.  At that time the Company held a 20% indirect interest in the Ore Fault Property.  In June of 2000, BRM acquired a Quarry Lease near Miami, Manitoba.  On February 13, 2001, the Company - previously Bird River Mines Co. Ltd. – changed its name to Bird River Mines Inc., without a share consolidation.  On January 12, 2004, BRM acquired the other 80% interest in the Ore Fault Property subject to certain underlying smelter rights and contingent upon the Company listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.  On July 31, 2004, BRM completed a shares-for-debt transaction.  During 2004, management initiated a NI-43-101 report to qualify its Ore Fault Property for an exchange listing.  On January 31, 2005, an initial private placement of $80,000 was completed to assist in financing the costs of re-activation.  On May 16, 2005, the Company expanded its Ore Fault Property by conditionally acquiring the adjacent 124-hectare Lotus Property comprised of 3-claims.  BRM completed a National Instrument 43-101 Report on the original Ore Fault Property and filed it with SEDAR on August 9, 2005.
The Company has recently raised additional funding to finance an initial phase of exploration on the Ore Fault Property.  Further funding will be required to advance the exploration of the property.  See Section 4.1 Narrative Description of the Business below. 

The shares of Bird River Mines Inc. were approved for listing on the CNQ Exchange on February 14, 2006.

3.2
The Company has not contemplated any significant acquisition, that would require a regulatory filing of the acquirer’s financial statements, within the last five years, nor is one currently contemplated.  BRM has completed two agreements to acquire interests in mineral properties as outlined below.   

On January 12, 2004, the Company acquired 80% of the issued and outstanding shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. from Myriad Resources Inc.  As consideration, BRM issued 400,000 common shares valued at $0.05 per share plus a $3,000 note payable due on January 15, 2005 for total consideration of $23,000.  BRM already owned the other 20% of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. and this company is now consolidated in BRM’s financials.  The Ore Fault Property is owned by 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  The acquisition of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. is contingent upon the BRM listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.  In addition, under certain circumstances, Myriad Resources Inc. has a 50% participation right in smelter rights on future production from the property.  BRM contemplates that it may potentially acquire some or all of these smelter rights in the future in order to make the Ore Fault Property more attractive to any potential joint venture partner.
On May 16, 2005, the Company expanded its Ore Fault Property by conditionally acquiring the adjacent 124-hectare Lotus Property comprised of 3-claims in consideration for $5,000 and 50,000 common shares.  The transaction is with an arms-length party and is contingent upon the BRM listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by November 15, 2006.
3.3 
The Company is engaged in the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties with its present emphasis on the exploration of base and precious metals, including nickel, copper, zinc, cobalt, platinum-palladium, silver and gold.  Mineral exploration is a cyclical industry affected primarily by the trend of prices for metals.  

The Company’s financial performance is dependent on many external factors.  The Company expects that any revenues it may earn from its operations in the future will be from the sale of minerals.  Both prices and markets for metals are volatile, difficult to predict and respond to changes in domestic and international political, social and economic environments. In addition, the availability and cost of funds for exploration, development and production costs are difficult to predict. These circumstances and events could materially affect the financial performance of the Company.

The Company also engages in secondary activities, from time to time, involving the purchase or acquisition of certain industrial minerals – typically diatomaceous earth and bentonite – for distribution and re-sale or, more recently, for use in an abandoned water well sealing operation.  The Company’s revenue and gross margin are attributable to these secondary activities.  In the Quarter ending October 31, 2004, the Company was, for the first time, active in sealing abandoned water wells in Manitoba.  During this period, BRM’s gross revenue form this activity was $8,890.  This activity can generally only be conducted during the summer months and adverse weather can limit operations.  There have been no well sealing operations to date in the summer of 2005 due to unusual flood conditions and detrimental changes to the former government incentive program to financially assist in the sealing of abandoned water wells.
4. Narrative Description of the Business

4.1 
General

(1) The Company has been engaged in the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties since its incorporation in 1958.  The Company has no operating mining or mineral properties at the present time and as such, has no revenue or income.  However, the Company also engages in secondary activities, from time to time, involving the purchase of industrial minerals for distribution and re-sale that generates some revenue and gross margin.  In the foreseeable future, the Company will remain dependent on the issuance of further securities or the sale or joint venture of its assets to raise funds to explore its property. 

Bird River Mines Inc. is in the process of finalizing its re-activation.  Previously, the Company held a 20% interest in the Ore Fault Property.  On January 12, 2004, BRM acquired the other remaining 80% interest in the Ore Fault Property, contingent upon the Company listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.  On July 31, 2004, BRM completed a shares-for-debt transaction.  On January 31, 2005, an initial private placement of $80,000 was completed to assist in financing the costs of re-activation.  On May 16, 2005, the Company expanded its Ore Fault Property by conditionally acquiring the adjacent 124-hectare Lotus Property comprised of 3-claims.  BRM completed a National Instrument 43-101 Report on the original Ore Fault Property and filed it with SEDAR on August 9, 2005.

On February 14, 2006, as part of the re-activation process, the Company completed an offering of $93,900 comprised of 469,500 Units at a price of $0.20 per Unit.  Each Unit is comprised of one common share and one-half of one Feb-07 Warrant and one-half of one Feb-08 Warrant.  Each whole Feb-07 Warrant is exercisable into one common share at a price of $0.30 per share until February 14, 2007.  Each whole Feb-08 Warrant is exercisable into one common share at a price of $0.40 per share until February 14, 2008. 

The Company’s objectives over the next twelve months are to initiate exploration on its wholly-owned Ore Fault property located in the Bird River Greenstone Belt in southeastern Manitoba.  The Company is proposing to commence a phased exploration program on the property as funds become available to the Company.  A more detailed description of the Ore Fault Property and the exploration work the Company proposes to carry out is contained in Section 4.3 below. 

Advancement of the exploration program on the Ore Fault Property will be dependent on the results of each program of exploration and the availability of funds to the Company to finance further exploration work.  At the date of this Listing Statement the Company has working capital of approximately $100,000.  This figure is comprised of the Company’s working capital of $6,585 at October 31, 2005 (being the difference between its current assets and current liabilities at that date);  the proceeds of a private placement completed on February 14, 2006 for $93,900; the proceeds from the exercise of warrants and the Company’s estimated net expenses since the end of the last fiscal quarter. 


The shares of Bird River Mines Inc. were approved for listing on the CNQ Exchange on

February 14, 2006.

During the spring of 2005-2006, the Company plans to start a first phase program on the Ore Fault Property.  This work will consist of data compilation; map production; re-evaluation and assaying of old drill core; and reconnaissance geological mapping and sampling to complete a GIS data package.  Completion of this program would allow the Company to move forward with a surface field program or offer the project for joint venture.  Future field programs would entail:  line cutting to establish a grid; geological mapping and prospecting; geophysical survey(s); and a geochemical survey, all in preparation for a diamond drilling program contemplated in a subsequent phase of exploration.  In the event that the Company raises flow-through funding in the future, some field work may be conducted prior to the completion of a property data package.

The Company is continuing to look for new exploration projects for the Company and will continue to rely on the expertise of its board members and consultants to assess these opportunities. The Company will retain the services of outside experts when appropriate to review and/or report on the results of exploration work completed by the Company and to assist the Company in assessing new properties. 

The Company presently anticipates that its general and administrative costs for the fiscal year ending July 31, 2006 will be in the order of  $50,000-$80,000.  The first phase of work on the Ore Fault Property is budgeted at approximately $50,000.  The Company believes it presently has adequate working capital to meet these costs. 

(2) Neither the Company or any of its former subsidiaries have declared bankruptcy, been placed in receivership or any similar proceeding. 

(3) There has been no material reorganization of the Company or any of its former

subsidiaries during the last three fiscal years of the Company.  On February 13,  2001, the Company - previously Bird River Mines Co. Ltd. – changed its name to Bird River Mines Inc., without a share consolidation.
4.2 
The Company has no asset-backed securities outstanding.

4.3 
At the date of this Listing Statement, Bird River Mines Inc. has one material mineral property, known as the Ore Fault Property.  The Company also holds an interest in the 124-hectare Lotus Property which is comprised of 3-claims and is located adjacent to the west and south of the Ore Fault Property.  In addition, BRM holds a 8-hectare Quarry Lease, hosting a narrow bed of bentonite, that is located 85 km southwest of Winnipeg near Miami, Manitoba. 

The Company retained geological consultants, PHW Consulting of Winnipeg, Manitoba to prepare a technical report on the Company’s Ore Fault Property to be filed by the Company pursuant to National Instrument 43-101.  The following disclosure in respect of the Ore Fault Property is based on the technical report prepared by Horst W. Petak, Ph.D., P.Eng., P.Geo., the sole owner of PHW Consulting, dated March 31 2005 (the “PHW Report”).  PHW Consulting and Horst W. Petak are each independent of the Company.  The PHW Report was prepared prior to the Company’s conditional acquisition of the adjacent 124-hectare Lotus Property comprised of 3-claims.                         .

(1) Property Description and Location

The Ore Fault Property consists of 16 unpatented contiguous mineral claims encompassing an area of 322 hectare (795.65 acres). It is located in the Winnipeg Mining District of southeastern Manitoba, Canada, within N.T.S. area 52L-5NE and 6NW. The claims are registered at the Mining Recording Office of Manitoba Industry, Economic Development and Mines in Winnipeg, Manitoba, in the name of the numbered company 2411181 Manitoba LTD. This numbered company is 100% owned by Bird River Mines Inc. of Winnipeg, Manitoba.

Geologically the property is located in the Bird River Greenstone Belt which is composed of Archean supracrustal volcanic and sedimentary rocks and ultramafic rocks of the Bird River Sill. It hosts numerous mineral occurrences containing nickel, copper, chromium and platinum group elements and the past producing nickel-copper ore bodies of the Maskwa open pit mine and the Dumbarton and F Zone underground mines. Besides intense internal folding, the BRGB has been subjected to heavy block faulting offsetting the blocks along generally northwest-southeasterly striking faults. The Ore Fault Property contains significant copper-nickel-zinc-silver mineralization in several small showings and two main occurrences on mineral claim Ore Fault 27. The two main showings, referred to as the ‘North and South Showing’, have been stripped, bulk sampled and drill tested. Several drill holes intercepted mineralization at the 400 vertical foot level. The only two deeper holes drilled to date under the North Showing intersected low-grade mineralization at the 700 vertical foot level. Continuity between the surface and the deeper levels has yet to be established by means of in-fill drilling. A pre NI 43-101 estimate, based on 12 shallow vertical holes testing the North Showing, calculated a resource of about 10,000 tons grading 0.29% copper and 0.46% nickel. There is potential to increase this resource downward.

The western half of the property has not been explored. Potential however exists for a sulphide iron formation hosted nickel-copper mineralization of the Cup Anderson Showing – Dumbarton type.

The Ore Fault Property is presently at an exploration stage with a small low-grade sub-economic copper-nickel resource with upward potential and potential in other areas.

On January 12, 2004, the Company acquired 80% of the issued and outstanding shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. from Myriad Resources Inc.  As consideration, BRM issued 400,000 common shares valued at $0.05 per share plus a $3,000 note payable due on January 15, 2005 for total consideration of $23,000.  BRM already owned the other 20% of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. and this company is now consolidated in BRM’s financials.  The Ore Fault Property is owned by 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  The acquisition of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. is contingent upon the BRM listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.  In addition, under certain circumstances, Myriad Resources Inc. has a 50% participation right in smelter rights on future production from the property.

The property is situated inside the boundaries of Nopiming Provincial Park.  To carry out any type of exploration work on the property requires a work permit which is not in place at this time.  It can be obtained over the counter from the Conservation office either in Winnipeg or in Lac du Bonnet.  The Provincial Parks Act classifies several types of parks depending on their intended main purpose.  These types are further categorized in land use categories.  Nopiming Provincial Park is classified as a natural park type of the resource management category. In this type and category commercial resource development and extraction is permitted. 

There are presently no known environmental liabilities associated with the Ore Fault  Property.

(2) Accessibility, Climate Control, Local Resources, Infrastructure & Physiography        

The property is located close to the western edge and within the Canadian Precambrian Shield.  Rock outcrop ridges separated by sometime extensive areas of swamp, muskeg and bog typically characterize its topography.  Elevations range from 290 meter to 320 meter above sea level. The principal drainage system of the area is to the west into Lake Winnipeg.  The main channels are Peterson Creek to the north and west of the property and Bird River south of the Property and south of Highway 315.  In and close to areas of outcrop the vegetation consists mainly of jackpine, white spruce and poplar. In the wet low areas tamarack, black spruce and willows dominate.

The Ore Fault Property is accessible by road all year round. Several routes of paved Provincial Highway lead from Winnipeg northeast and east to the small city of  Lac du Bonnet, an average distance of 95 km.  From there to the east and northeast, highway 313 and 315 is paved for another distance of 39 km up to the Bird River bridge.  Then #315 and #314 continue as gravel roads. #314 transects the northwest corner of the property on mineral claim “Ore Fault 28”.  All roads are well maintained during all seasons and can be traveled by car or truck.

The closest population centre is the Town of Lac du Bonnet with a population of 1,100.  It is situated south-west of the property and 91 kilometres north-east of Winnipeg on the west bank of a portion of the historic Winnipeg River.  The Town has a local airport with a 3600 foot paved runway, 69 miles away from Winnipeg International Airport.  It further offers a wide range of services and supplies, some of them specific to the mining industry, such as various contracting services including diamond drilling.  In the past Lac du Bonnet was the main source of skilled manpower to a number of mining operations in the region, such as the Werner Lake Mine a few kilometres into Ontario, or the Dumbarton Mine on claims joining the Ore Fault property to the south and now held by Mustang Minerals Corp.  The still operating Tanco Mine, located at Bernic Lake about 60 km east of Lac du Bonnet and 7 km south-east of the Ore Fault Property, is one of the largest rare element bearing deposits in the world.  Its mine staff lives in Lac du Bonnet and surrounding area and commutes daily to and from work at the mine. Nopiming Lodge, located about 16 km east of the property on Highway 315 on the south shore of Bird Lake, is open year round and provides accommodation, food and automotive fuel.  The south shore of Bird Lake is about 10 km east of the Ore Fault property and has cottage development and provincial camp ground facilities.  The lodge and the cottage community are serviced by a hydroelectric power line that runs parallel and in close vicinity to the southern property boundary.  The closest rail connection is 45 km south of Lac du Bonnet at Whitemouth on CPR’s east-west main line. Exploration activities and potential mining activities on the Ore Fault property would have no negative effects on the recreational aspects of Bird Lake. 

Warm, sunny summers and cold bright winters characterize Manitoba's climate.  Afternoon temperatures in July and August Average 25ºC. Midwinter daytime readings always remain well below freezing, down to –20oC and colder.  Wide variations from average values are common in all seasons.  More than half of the annual precipitation falls in the summer months in the form of brief heavy showers.  Most of southeastern Manitoba receives 110-140 cm of snow annually.  Due to easy road access to the property, exploration activities can be carried out 12 months of the year.

The Ore Fault project is presently still at the exploration stage.  Items like sufficiency of surface rights for mining operations, potential tailings storage areas, waste disposal areas and potential processing plant sites are not relevant at this point in time.  These would have to be addressed should the project advance to a level at which a feasibility study is required.

(3) History and Exploration of the Ore Fault Property 

The following is a summary of the prospecting and exploration activities of the area now covered by the Ore Fault Property.

1923:  R.E. Hickey and R.E. Jackson stacked two claims (Rockland No.1 [32858] and Rockland No.2 [32859]) over what is now known as the Ore Fault copper/nickel occurrence. 

1924:  Both claims were transferred to Joseph Thomas. The type and amount of work carried out on the property is unknown. The claims were surveyed but not brought to lease.

1932:  J.F. Wright staked the claims as Lot 857 and 858 and cancelled them in 1933.

1939:  A.E. Lyon staked Kimberly No.6 [W6737]. No work reported.

1941:  D.A. Lyon re-staked the claim as Opeal No.4 [W10630]. No records of work are known from that time. The claim was cancelled.

1948:  R. Gargan staked the Lucky Boy No.11 [W16051] and transferred it to D.A. Lyon who optioned it to Blake Chamberlain and Hilding Johnson who then assigned it to Wento Mining Syndicate N.P.L.

1950:
Government records (Assessment File 91324) contain drill logs of 3 diamond drill holes (B.H. 1 – 3) put down during that time on Lucky Boy 11. Copies of the logs are attached in Appendix B. Hole #2 was stopped in 92’ of overburden. Hole #1 and #3, drilled at -45o to depths of 401’ and 432’respectively, encountered intersections of altered peridotite including some sulfides (pyrite, pyrrhotite, chalcopyrite). Only Hole #1 was sampled and assayed. The best values are reported from a 1.5’ and 0.5’ interval assaying 0.54% and 0.58% respectively of Nickel and a 6.3’ interval of 0.51% Copper (for detailed assay report see drill log in Appendix B). 

1953:   All previous options were abandoned and a new option agreement was reached with Aart Van der Brink only to be cancelled in 1954.
1956:  The property was signed over to Finlay G. Tease who optioned it to A.J. McLaren. This option agreement was abandoned in 1958 and the claim was finally cancelled that same year.

1958:   L.B. Murdock acquired the property by staking it as Jupiter No.11 [W29599] and held it until 1961.

1968:   The property in its present shape and size, consisting of the claims listed in Table 1, was staked by Albert Fontaine and assigned to John Donner. It has since been called the Ore Fault Property.

The following exploration work has been done on the property:

1969:  Ground geophysics consisting of magnetometer and electromagnetic survey delineated several conductive zones providing targets for follow-up work.

1969:  Trenching: two trenches (50’x 40’x 3’ and 62’x 44’x 8’ respectively) uncovered the north and south mineralized zone.

1969:   Diamond drilling – Phase one: total of 3969’ in 15 holes (DDH #4 to 18)

            Summary Report by D.T. Anderson, 1969 (drill logs in Appendix ‘B’)
1970 – 71:   Diamond drilling - Phase two: total of 6329’ in 10 holes (DDH #9 to 28) Interim Report by D.T. Anderson, (drill logs in Appendix ‘B’)

1989:  Property was optioned to Milestone Resources Corporation who in the same year completed a 3449’ diamond drill program drilling 16 holes (DDH 89-1 to 89-11 and 89-13 to 89-17, drill logs in Appendix ‘ B’). All but two were short vertical holes intended to assess the tonnage and grade of the copper and nickel mineralization of the main showing on the Ore Fault 27 claim. Based on the results from these holes Dr. Anderson (1989) calculates “approximately 10,000 tons grading 0.46% Nickel and 0.29% Copper”. The combined results from the 1968, 1970 and 1989 drill programs “suggest a disseminated zone of at least 700 feet vertical extent and containing approximately one million tons grading 0.4% Nickel and 0.3% Copper”(Anderson, D.T., 1989). A more massive sulphide zone within this disseminated body grades > 1% Nickel and 0.5% Copper.

1996:  2411181 Manitoba Ltd. contracted PHW Consulting to carry out line cutting, ground magnetic and VLF-EM surveys over the western block of the Ore Fault claims (Ore Fault, Ore Fault 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28). Results from these surveys, including maps, are discussed by Dr.D.T. Anderson, 1997.
Above mentioned grades, tonnages and resource estimates are taken from earlier company reports and are therefore to be considered as historical information. Although the author of this report considers these data reliable, they do not qualify as being in accordance with National Instrument NI 43-101, section 1.3 and 1.4.

The property was never in production.

(4)  Geological Setting  

Regional Geology of the Bird River Greenstone Belt

The regional bedrock geology of the Bird River area is made up of rocks composing the Bird River Greenstone Belt [BRGB], a suite of Archean supracrustal volcanic and sedimentary rocks that are part of the English River gneissic block of the Western Superior Province.  This belt, pinching and swelling in width between 5 and 10 km, trends in an easterly direction over a distance of about 55 km from Lac du Bonnet to the Ontario border.  This greenstone assemblage in turn has been intruded by rocks ranging from quartz-feldspar porphyry to diabase and gabbro and a suite of differentiated ultramafic rocks known as the Bird River Sill [BRS].  The BRGB is bounded by the Maskwa Lake quartz diorite batholith to the north and the Lac du Bonnet quartz monzonite batholith in the south.

In regional structural terms the BRGB constitutes the southern limb of a large anticline with southeasterly plunging axis. The much narrower and discontinuous Cat Lake belt represents the northern limb and the Maskwa Lake quartz diorite batholith takes up the space between. Besides intense internal folding, the BRGB has been subjected to heavy block faulting offsetting the blocks along generally northwest-southeasterly striking faults.

Both belts are known to host numerous mineral occurrences (nickel, copper, chromium and platinum group elements) including some past producing mines (Maskwa Lake, Cat Lake, Maskwa Open Pit, Dumbarton Mine).

Local Geology of the Ore Fault Property
The local geology, underlying the Ore Fault property and surrounding area, is  made up of the generally east-west striking volcanogenic assemblage of the BRGB, including the gabbroic to peridotitic phases of the BRS, and the dioritic Maskwa Lake batholith. Prominent northwest-southeast striking faults and associated shear zones cut through the BRS disrupting it into laterally displaced blocks. One such fault transects the western part of the property through mineral claims Ore Fault 28, 27, 23, 24 and 20. Its name ORE FAULT and ultimately the property name ORE FAULT PROPERTY, derives from an adjacent significant copper-nickel-zinc occurrence referred to as the ORE FAULT DEPOSIT (D.T. Anderson, 1997). The term “Deposit” in this case is a historical name that is not in accordance with the categories set out in sections 1.3 and 1.4 of the National Instrument NI 43-101.

Deposit Types

The Ore Fault Property includes areas containing disseminated to semi-massive and massive concentrations of copper-nickel-zinc sulphide mineralization with varying metal ratios. The presence of zinc in a copper-nickel assemblage is an unusual combination that Paul M. Ritchie investigated in his 1971 Masters Thesis. He used metal ratio plots of copper nickel and zinc and undertook sulphur isotope studies to determine the genetic origin of this mineralization in the north and south showing on the Ore Fault property. Diamond drill core assays for this project were done by the laboratory of the Department of Earth Sciences of the University of Manitoba and the Mineral Processing Division of the Geological Survey of Canada in Ottawa. The results of his investigations lead Ritchie to believe in a bimodal type of mineralization. The first type is a copper-nickel phase associated with a mafic to ultramafic magmatic event. The second type is the copper-zinc (with associated silver) phase related to a volcanic host rock. Ritchie states: “ – The copper-nickel- zinc ore body appears to have been caused by deposition of a copper-nickel mineralization related to an ultramafic intrusion near an earlier copper-zinc mineralization. Later faulting and intrusions have helped to mix the two sulphide occurrences together to form the ‘Ore Fault’ deposit. – “  (The terms “ore body” and “deposit”, as used by Ritchie, are not in compliance with National Instrument NI 43-101.)

(5) Exploration Information 

Other than reconnaissance visits to the property and the on-going compilation of historic mining and exploration data from property and the preparation and SEDAR-filing of a NI-43-101 Report, the Company has not carried out any exploration work on the property during the last 12 months. 

A summary of exploration work previously carried out by the Company and others on the property is contained in section 4.3(3) History above.  This information is provided in detail below.  Future proposed exploration to be carried out by the Company is outlined in section 4.3(12) Exploration and Development below. 

Since early in the prospecting and exploration history of the property the target seems to have been nickel and copper sulphide mineralization. The prospecting was all done by John Donner, an old time prospector from Lac du Bonnet. Unfortunately no primary records of his work (written or maps) could be found. The records available to the author of this report consist of copies of consultant reports with often small scale simplified or no map content.

In an internal report Dr. H.D.B. Wilson describes ground magnetic and Aflec electromagnetic surveys done in 1969 on mineral claims Ore Fault 26 and 27. The line spacing of the survey grid was 100 feet and in places 50 feet. The station interval was 50 feet. The magnetometer was a Barringer proton precession magnetometer, model GM102. Bird River Mines Ltd. contracted the surveys to Central Geophysics. The survey delineated some strong magnetic anomalies and electromagnetic conductors. These are shown on a compilation sketch by W.S. Ferreira from November 1989 when the property was optioned to Milestone Resource Corporation (Fig.10). The author reviewed and verified the original data and maps contained in confidential assessment file #99565 at the offices of Manitoba Industry, Economic Development and Mines in Winnipeg, Manitoba.

In 1996, the numbered company 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. contracted PHW Consulting from Winnipeg to carry out line cutting, magnetic survey and VLF-electromagnetic survey over the western half of the property. The work was supervised by Horst W. Petak, Ph.D., P.Eng., P.Geo., who is the author of this report. Line cutting established a new, and this time metric grid covering the mineral claims Ore Fault 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29 and 30. A grid plan is illustrated in Fig.11. Picket lines were cut at 100 metre intervals. Chaining and picketing was done at 25 metre intervals.

The geophysical surveys were carried out with an EDA Omni-plus system. This is an integrated instrument consisting of a proton precession magnetometer module and a VLF electromagnetic module. Field readings were taken at 12.5 metre station intervals. Data processing of the field data, also performed by PHW Consulting, was done electronically using Geosoft’s geophysical processing software.

The total field magnetic contour map shows an anomaly on line 400S and 500S at about 150W to 200W. It is the combined response of magnetite in the ultramafic rocks and the pyrrhotite content of the sulphides in the north and south nickel-copper-zinc showing on mineral claim Ore Fault 27. Several other similar anomalies delineated on the map are still untested and need follow-up work starting with detailed geological mapping of the entire property. The vertical gradient component, in Fig.13, accentuates the total field anomalies and suggests a near-surface source.

A VLF-electromagnetic survey was completed simultaneously with the magnetic survey. Signals from the US naval transmitter NLK, located at Jim Creek, Washington, transmitting on the frequency of 24.8 kHz, were used during the entire survey. Results from this survey are displayed in Fig.14 as contour map of the Fraser filtered in-phase component. While most of the responses seem to be caused by conductive overburden, there are a few that coincide with magnetic anomalies and are probably true bedrock conductors, such as the one at 200W on line 400S.  It is spatially related to the north and south nickel-copper-zinc occurrence and might be caused by shears and associated massive portions of the sulphide mineralization. Detailed geological mapping should help to explain some of the other responses.

(6)  Mineralization 

The most significant concentration of mineralization occurs on mineral claim Ore Fault 27 (W41358). There are two surface showings about 120 metre apart and referred to as the North Showing and the South Showing.

The north showing contains significant nickel-copper mineralization with minor zinc and trace amounts of platinum, palladium and cobalt. After the initial discovery a bulldozer and back-hoe was engaged to strip the area of glacial overburden to extend the surface showing to about 30 metres along strike and 8 metres wide. Results from several phases of diamond drilling provide evidence of a downward continuation of the mineralization to at least 120 metres and possibly to 215 metres vertical depth. There is also some indication of an increase in length and width with depth. More drilling however is needed to confirm this theory.

In the south showing copper and zinc dominates, while nickel is a lesser constituent. It also contains some silver. The showing is about 30 metres long and 8 metres wide.

Several small prospecting trenches and pits are located about 250 metres north-east and north of the north showing. Their exact location could not be determined. Although one is known to be located on line 16N.

The sulphide mineralization is mostly contained in a series of shears in a faulted block of metasedimentary and metavolcanic rocks of the Bird River greenstone belt and ultramafic rocks of the Bird River Sill. Both the structural and lithological situation of the area is extremely complex and little understood. Detailed mapping of the mineralized zones, and for that matter of the whole property, is therefore urgently recommended.

In 1971 E.H. Nickel reports on a “Mineralogical Examination of Copper-Nickel Ore from Bird River Mines, Manitoba”. The samples seemed to have come from the north and south showing. This however is not confirmed and some re-sampling is advisable. E.H. Nickel prepared polished sections from “ore fragments” and did electron probe microanalysis of the minerals. The principal ore minerals were found to be chalcopyrite, pyrrhotite sphalerite, pentlandite, smythite, pyrite, violarite and marcasite. As gangue minerals he determined amphibolite, quartz, chlorite, minor calcite and occasionally some talc. Copper seems to be entirely tied up in chalcopyrite and sphalerite appears as the only zinc mineral. While most of the nickel appears as pentlandite and violarite it is also found in pyrrhotite, smythite and traces even in marcasite and in some gangue minerals.

(7) Drilling – Also see 4.3(3) History above

All the diamond drilling was done in the imperial system. Footages, core sample intervals, etc, are therefore reported in feet and inches. Drill hole locations shown in all illustrations are based on the old (pre 1996) reference grid.

The first indication of the presence of sulphide mineralization was the result of prospecting activities in 1950. These early results were followed up by diamond drilling. Of three drill holes, put down on the LUCKEY BOY 11 mineral claim, two intersected serpentinized peridotite with pyrrhotite, calcopyrite and magnetite and one (#2) stopped in 92 ft of overburden. Only DDH #1 however was sampled and assayed for copper and nickel. The best assay was from a 5’ interval (248.0’ – 253.0’) running 0.58% nickel and a 6.3’ interval (281.0’ – 287.3’) returning .051% copper. Drill logs including assays are attached in Appendix B. The locations of these drill holes (#1,2 and 3) are shown in the composite drill plan in Fig.15. Hole #1 and 2 were drilled to the south and #3 was drilled to the north. The total footage was 925 feet.
In the following two-phase diamond drill program, from August to October 1969 and from September 1970 to January 1971, a total of 24 drill holes were put down (DDH #4 to 18, total of 3969.6 ft. and DDH #19 to 28, total of 7001 ft. respectively; DDH #9 was started during phase one and deepened during phase two). The NI 43-101 Report which is available on SEDAR and the Company’s website provides additional information.

The objective of phase 1 drilling was to test the original surface showing at shallow depth. Based on these results Dr. Anderson (1971) estimated “a grade of 0.45% nickel and a tonnage of approximately 1500 tons per vertical foot to a depth of approximately 150 ft”. The results also suggested the presence of several mineralized zones. One of them, namely the south zone, also returned zinc and silver assays. Table 2 contains cumulative assay results compiled from drill logs and sections of DDH # 4 to 18 inclusive. 
	TABLE 2: Diamond Drill Holes # 4 to 18 (Phase 1 Drilling, 1969)
	
	

	  
	  Cumulative Assay Results from Drill Sections by  Dr.Anderson, 1969 (depth and intervals given in feet)

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	DDH #
	From
	to
	Interval
	% Cu
	% Ni
	% Zn
	oz/t Ag

	4
	62.2
	130.0
	60.8
	0.89
	0.46
	1.06
	0.68

	5
	65.0
	74.5
	9.5
	0.13
	0.33
	0.16
	

	
	86.2
	99.0
	12.8
	0.23
	0.43
	0.07
	

	6
	68.5
	94.8
	26.3
	0.11
	0.45
	0.08
	

	7
	248.9
	258.4
	9.5
	0.12
	0.22
	0.04
	

	8
	164.0
	260.4
	96.4
	0.30
	0.46
	0.10
	

	
	241.5
	260.9
	19.4
	0.77
	1.12
	0.81
	

	9
	70.0
	109.7
	39.7
	0.00
	0.24
	
	

	10
	263.6
	360.0
	96.4
	0.00
	0.22
	
	

	
	676.0
	698.1
	22.1
	0.20
	0.44
	
	

	11
	229.5
	232.2
	2.7
	Trace
	0.29
	
	

	
	235.0
	238.8
	3.8
	0.07
	
	
	

	12
	118.7
	137.8
	19.1
	0.32
	0.22
	0.36
	0.27

	
	196.9
	202.1
	5.2
	0.43
	0.00
	2.00
	0.46

	13
	61.1
	62.3
	1.2
	0.06
	0.13
	
	

	
	123.7
	126.7
	3.0
	0.20
	0.26
	
	

	
	126.7
	129.6
	2.9
	0.10
	0.14
	
	

	
	158.7
	162.2
	3.5
	0.10
	0.03
	0.31
	0.08

	
	174.7
	183.3
	8.6
	2.99
	0.00
	1.87
	1.26

	
	261.2
	267.1
	5.9
	0.22
	0.10
	0.00
	0.08

	14
	102.0
	107.0
	5.0
	0.28
	1.25
	0.62
	Trace

	
	122.2
	127.0
	4.8
	1.24
	0.10
	1.13
	0.92

	15
	8.2
	34.0
	25.8
	0.41
	1.34
	2.08
	0.83

	16
	8.2
	44.5
	36.3
	0.54
	2.00
	2.18
	4.41

	17
	7.9
	17.9
	10.0
	0.18
	0.40
	0.00
	0.40

	
	27.0
	64.0
	37.0
	0.31
	0.73
	0.56
	0.60

	
	145.0
	169.0
	24.0
	0.17
	0.38
	0.09
	0.17

	18
	23.5
	57.5
	34.0
	0.24
	0.49
	0.27
	0.22

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


The extension of DDH # 9 and holes # 19 to 28 inclusive were drilled between September 1970 and January 1971. They prove the presence of mineralization to at least the 400 foot level and also indicate a longitudinal and lateral increase with depth as well as a slightly increased average nickel grade. Table 3 contains cumulative assay results compiled from drill logs and sections of DDH # 9 extension and # 19 to 28 inclusive

	TABLE 3: Diamond Drill Holes # 9, 19 to 28 (Phase 2 Drilling, 1970/71)
	

	
	Cumulative Assay Results from Drill Sections by Dr. Anderson, 1971 (depth and intervals given in feet)

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	DDH #
	From
	to
	Interval
	% Cu
	% Ni
	% Zn
	oz/t Ag

	9
	344.0
	355.0
	11.0
	1.18
	0.52
	1.50
	1.24

	      (phase 1 DDH # 9 was extended from 205' to 667' during phase 2 drilling)

	19
	411.0
	511.0
	100.0
	0.14
	0.30
	0.00
	0.00

	20
	480.0
	545.5
	65.5
	0.15
	0.41
	0.03
	0.13

	21
	469.5
	588.5
	119.0
	0.29
	0.63
	
	

	23
	554.5
	571.0
	16.5
	0.16
	0.46
	
	

	
	576.0
	588.0
	12.0
	1.17
	0.04
	1.24
	1.25

	24
	256.6
	278.3
	21.7
	0.11
	0.40
	
	

	
	319.3
	327.0
	7.7
	0.12
	0.37
	
	

	
	402.5
	409.3
	6.8
	0.25
	0.52
	
	

	
	466.3
	510.5
	44.2
	0.18
	0.55
	
	

	
	510.5
	551.7
	41.2
	0.07
	0.36
	
	

	
	660.0
	699.0
	39.0
	0.74
	0.67
	4.23
	

	25
	259.0
	264.0
	5.0
	0.08
	0.01
	
	

	
	303.6
	305.6
	2.0
	0.17
	0.42
	
	

	
	414.5
	418.8
	4.3
	0.13
	0.29
	
	

	
	461.4
	470.0
	8.6
	0.10
	0.31
	
	

	
	473.7
	486.9
	13.2
	0.14
	0.31
	
	

	
	490.5
	500.5
	10.0
	0.21
	0.54
	
	

	26
	205.0
	227.4
	22.4
	0.20
	0.32
	
	

	
	490.8
	497.0
	6.2
	0.11
	0.86
	
	

	27
	452.0
	454.6
	2.6
	0.13
	0.33
	
	

	28
	72.5
	117.5
	45.0
	0.12
	0.31
	
	

	
	117.5
	147.5
	30.0
	0.12
	0.37
	
	

	
	147.5
	197.5
	50.0
	0.10
	0.34
	
	

	
	197.5
	232.5
	35.0
	0.17
	0.43
	
	

	
	232.5
	257.5
	25.0
	0.22
	0.54
	
	

	
	275.5
	279.5
	4.0
	0.13
	0.33
	
	

	
	491.0
	497.0
	6.0
	0.14
	0.74
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


A third phase of diamond drilling was carried out by Milestone Resources Corporation between October of 1989 and November 1989. Milestone, who optioned the property from Bird River Mines at the time, drilled a total of 3449 ft in 16 holes with the numbers 89-1 to 11 and 89-13 to 17. Hole # 89-1 to 15 were shallow vertical holes (between 56’ and 176’) testing the area of the main surface showing. Cumulative grades, tabulated in Table 4, were calculated from assays included in the drill logs attached in Appendix B of the NI 43-101 Report. Based on these holes, Dr. Anderson (1989) estimated a resource of close to 10,000 tons (9,072 tonnes) grading 0.46% nickel and 0.29% copper. The parameters for his estimate predates National Instrument NI 43-101.

	TABLE 4: Diamond Drill Holes # 89-1 to 89-17 (1989 Drilling)
	
	

	         
	Cumulative Assay Results from Drill Sections by Dr. Anderson, 1989

	
	(depth and interval given in feet;  # 89-12 was not drilled)
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	DDH #
	From
	to
	Interval
	% Cu
	% Ni
	% Zn
	oz/t Ag

	89-1
	10.0
	47.3
	37.3
	0.42
	1.13
	0.07
	0.70

	89-2
	6.0
	76.0
	70.0
	0.41
	0.54
	0.06
	0.64

	89-3
	3.2
	64.0
	60.8
	0.80
	0.85
	0.21
	0.58

	89-4
	58.1
	126.0
	67.9
	0.32
	0.61
	0.20
	0.48

	89-5
	33.0
	119.0
	86.0
	0.19
	0.43
	0.17
	0.15

	89-6
	18.0
	88.9
	70.9
	0.15
	0.56
	0.07
	0.19

	89-7
	23.6
	91.2
	67.6
	0.26
	0.34
	0.06
	0.21

	89-8
	36.5
	67.0
	30.5
	0.15
	1.48
	0.45
	0.22

	89-9
	36.0
	56.0
	20.0
	0.14
	0.54
	0.04
	0.20

	89-10
	14.5
	29.5
	15.0
	0.54
	0.59
	0.07
	0.99

	89-11
	47.5
	57.5
	10.0
	0.13
	0.73
	0.08
	0.17

	
	62.5
	73.9
	11.4
	0.11
	1.65
	0.29
	0.19

	89-13
	19.0
	99.0
	80.0
	0.28
	0.18
	0.09
	0.24

	89-14
	11.5
	59.5
	48.0
	   8 samples taken but no assays      available

	89-15
	22.0
	62.5
	40.5
	0.40
	0.42
	0.07
	0.46

	89-16
	750.0
	922.5
	172.5
	0.24
	0.49
	0.03
	0.27

	89-17
	555.0
	650.0
	95.0
	0.11
	0.44
	0.01
	Trace

	
	787.5
	807.5
	20.0
	0.61
	0.04
	0.23
	0.49

	
	813.5
	930.5
	117.0
	0.45
	0.41
	0.07
	0.43

	
	952.0
	960.0
	8.0
	0.15
	0.21
	0.04
	0.24


(8) Sampling and Analysis  

The standard sampling method was to take split drill core samples of mineralized core sections. Sample intervals were measured in feet and vary greatly, from 1 to 10 feet, averaging between 3 to 5 feet. All drill core is of AXT diameter. All known drilling on the Ore Fault property is located in the area of the north and south nickel-copper-zinc showing on mineral claim Ore Fault 27. The objective was to search for and establish the downward and lateral extension of the surface mineralization. Results to date indicate downward continuity to at least the 400 foot level. Drill hole #28-16 and #28-17 intersected nickel and copper mineralization at around the 700 foot level. More drill testing is required to explore the lateral extension at this level and to prove the continuity from the 400 foot to the 700 foot level and possibly beyond..

From personal conversations with Dr. D.T. Anderson, the long time consultant geologist for Bird River Mines Ltd., it is evident that sampling of the diamond drill core from the Bird River property was incomplete. The reason was a constant shortage of necessary funds. At least some of the core is currently stored at the drill core storage facility of the Manitoba Mines Branch in Winnipeg. A review and possibly re-sampling of it is warranted and highly recommended.

A listing of composite samples with values for copper, nickel, zinc and silver is provided in the Tables 2, 3 and 4.

(9) Security of Samples   

The entire sampling procedure (choosing core sections to be sampled, core splitting, packaging, shipping to the laboratory for assaying, etc.) was handled by the late Mr. John Donner. He was a prospector and the president of Bird River Mines at the time. Core logging, with exception of the first three holes, was done by the company’s consulting geologist Dr. D.T. Anderson.

Information gathered from spotty company correspondence, copies of internal company reports and personal communication with Dr. Anderson indicates that Warnock Hersey International Limited was used as the main chemical laboratory. The now defunct company was a reputable, certified and widely used analytical facility located in Winnipeg. Unfortunately no laboratory reports, pertaining to assaying and analytical procedures applied, are available any more. Assay values included in this report were taken from copies of company drill logs and reports as the only available source of information. The nature and extent of quality control measures, like check assays etc., is not known.

In the author’s opinion it is quite possible that the sampling of the drill core was incomplete. The author has no knowledge regarding the sample preparation and security measures taken by the company at the time. Personal past experience with Warnock Hersey has been good and their analytical output was of high integrity.

The author did not take independent samples from the mineral showings of the Ore Fault property. Neither did he resample or re-assay any of the drill core from the property. The data presented in this report rely strictly on historic company reports and maps, or copies thereof, provided to the author by Bird River Mines Inc. and personal communication with Dr. D.T. Anderson, the former consulting geologist to the company. The author considers the data source reliable but probably incomplete.   

(10) 
Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves   

There are presently no known resources or reserves on the Ore Fault Property.   

In 1971 the Mines Branch of the Department of Energy, Mines and Resources in Ottawa conducted two studies of the copper-nickel mineralization on the Ore Fault property. E.H. Nickel (1971) examined the mineralogical aspect. Raicevic and Bruce (1971) investigated beneficiation possibilities. The sample material sent to Ottawa consisted of drill core samples compounded in 2 samples and a 150 lb (68 kg) bulk sample composed of 7 surface samples collected on the north copper-nickel showing. The location of the 7 samples is known. Which drill holes the other 2 samples came from is not known. In both reports by above mentioned authors the term “ore” is used in historic sense. It is not in compliance with National Instrument NI 43-101 standards.

Nickel (1971) examined polished sections under the ore microscope and did electron probe microanalysis of the minerals in the polished sections. His objective was:

“to determine the nickel distribution between the various phases, and to assist in the identification and characterization of the minerals”. He determined that “copper appears to occur entirely as chalcopyrite” – “sphalerite appears to be the only zinc mineral” and “nickel occurs in a wide variety of minerals”. Beside the main nickel minerals, pentlandite and violarite, nickel was also found tied up in pyrrhotite, smythite, marcasite and in the gangue mineral chlorite. A copy of Nickel’s full report is attached in Appendix ‘C’.

The objective of Raicevic and Bruce’s investigations was to prepare 1) “a separate copper and nickel concentrate, or a combined copper-nickel concentrate with maximum copper and nickel recoveries, the highest Cu-Ni grades and minimum zinc contents”, 2) “a zinc concentrate where feasible” and 3)  “a separate nickeliferous concentrate”. From their test results they concluded that 1) “recoveries of 91 to 92% of the copper and 62 to 63% of the nickel in the ore were achieved by flotation alone in separate copper-rich and nickel-rich concentrates and in a combined copper-nickel concentrate”, 2) “total nickel recovery can be increased to 70 to 81% by low-intensity magnetic separation”, 3) “between 27 and 54% of the iron in the ore can be recovered as a by-product from the latter concentrate”. In regard to precious metals they state “Only small economic benefits from the silver, platinum, and palladium can be expected because of their low contents in the ore samples”. A copy of Raicevic and Bruce’s full report is attached in Appendix ‘C’.  In the author of this report’s opinion however not enough attention has been paid to platinum group elements in the past. Current commodity prices certainly warrant this aspect be fully included in future work plans for the property.

D.T. Anderson (1997) reports a multi-element assay from the 150 lb bulk sample done, according to personal communication with Dr. Anderson, by the Mines Branch laboratory in Ottawa. The assay lists the following elements:

Silicon (Si)                              1.86%

Phosphorus (P)                          .02%

Titanium (Ti)                             .09%

Calcium (Ca)                            Trace

Magnesium (Mg)                      Trace

Aluminum (Al)                        1.82%

Iron (Fe)                                 46.63%

Sulphur (S)                             31.77%

Copper (Cu)                               .50%

Nickel (Ni)                               5.12%

Cobalt (Co)                                .46%

Arsenic (As)                              None

Antimony (Sb)                           None

Tin (Sn)                                      None

Lead (Pb)                                   Trace

Sodium (Na)                              .09%

Potassium (K)                            .06%

Gold (Au)                                  .04 oz/ton

Silver (Ag)                                .80 oz/ton

The bulk sample is compounded from samples as shown in Fig.18 of the NI 43-101 Report, except for sample # 6204.  Extremely high copper and silver values (22.19% and 15.88 oz/ton respectively over 3 feet) would have biased the results of the bulk sample assays. The significance of this analysis is the detection of cobalt (0.46%) which was not known up until then. It is recommended that all available and future drill core from the Ore Fault property be re-examined and assayed for cobalt. It was the commodity Canmine Resources Corporation explored for and discovered on the property now held by Mustang Minerals Corporation. Their property borders the Ore Fault property to the south.

There is currently one mineral occurrence on the Ore Fault Property for which a preliminary historical resource estimate had been calculated. It is the copper-nickel occurrence referred to as the North Showing on mineral claim Ore Fault 27. The estimate was done by Dr. D.T. Anderson in his capacity as the consulting geologist for Bird River Mines Inc. It predates National Instrument NI 43-101 standards. Based on 12 shallow vertical drill holes (Fig.16 and 17) he calculated an estimate of about 10,000 tons (9,072 tonnes) grading 0.29% copper and 0.46% nickel, qualifying as an ‘Inferred Mineral Resource’ category in accordance with CIM Standards on Mineral Resources and Reserves.


There are currently no Mineral Reserves on the property. 
(11) 
Mining Operations   

There are presently no mining operations on the Ore Fault Property.   

(12) Exploration and Development 

During the winter of 2005-2006, the Company plans to start a first phase program on the Ore Fault Property.  This work will consist of data compilation; map production; re-evaluation and assaying of old drill core; and reconnaissance geological mapping and sampling to complete a GIS data package.  Completion of this program would allow the Company to move forward with a surface field program or offer the project for joint venture.  Future field programs would entail:  line cutting to establish a grid; geological mapping and prospecting; geophysical survey(s); and a geochemical survey, all in preparation for a diamond drilling program contemplated in a subsequent phase of exploration.  In the event that the Company raises flow-through funding in the future, some field work may be conducted prior to the completion of a property data package.

4.4 
The Company has no oil and gas operations. 

5.
Selected Consolidated Financial Information 

For financial information for periods subsequent to the periods reported below,  kindly refer to SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

5.1 
Annual Information 

The following table sets forth selected financial information for the last three completed financial years:

Statement of Operations and Deficit Data
Audited for the Year ending July 31 
2005
2004
2003

($)
($) 
($) 


Revenue – other 
29,201
15,689 
7,466 

Cost of goods sold 
16,988
11,235 
5,712 


Gross margin 

12,213
4,454 
1,754 


Administrative expense 
64,977
23,212 
18,055 


Mineral properties written off 
Nil
Nil 
Nil


Gain (loss) on sale of equipment 
Nil
Nil 
Nil 

Loss for the year 
52,764
18,758 
16,301 

Loss per Common Share 
0.01
0.01 
0.01 

(basic and fully diluted)
Balance Sheet Data

Audited for the Year ending July 31 
2005
2004 
2003

($) 
($)

Total Assets 
229,520
182,024 
155,216

- prior to restatement 


325,537
Long term liabilities 
26,686
26,686 
48,041 
Total liabilities 
53,213
47,673 
50,908 

Cash Dividends 
Nil
Nil 
Nil 

5.2
Quarterly Information 
The following is a summary of selected financial information of the Company for the quarterly periods indicated:

	2006 Unaudited
	1st Quarter
	2nd Quarter
	3rd Quarter
	4th Quarter

	
	($)
	($)
	($)
	($)

	
	
	
	
	

	Revenue – other
	8,483
	
	
	

	Cost of goods sold
	5,385
	
	
	

	Gross margin
	3,098
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Administrative expenses
	17,571
	
	
	

	Mineral properties written off
	Nil
	
	
	

	Gain (loss) on investments
	Nil
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Loss for the quarter
	14,473l
	
	
	

	Loss per common share
	0.00
	
	
	

	 (basic & fully diluted)
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	2005 Unaudited
	1st Quarter
	2nd Quarter
	3rd Quarter
	4th Quarter

	
	      ($)
	     ($)
	       ($)
	    ($)

	Revenue – other
	11,835
	7,260
	4,484
	5,622

	Cost of goods sold
	7,466
	1,974
	2,836
	4,712

	Gross margin
	4,369
	5,286
	1,648
	910

	
	
	
	
	

	Administrative expenses
	4,369
	20,095
	16,420
	24,093

	Mineral properties written off
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	Gain (loss) on investments
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	
	
	
	
	

	Loss for the quarter
	Nil
	14,809
	14,772
	23,183

	Loss per common share
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	 (basic & fully diluted)
	
	
	
	

	2004 Unaudited
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Revenue – other
	1,397
	3,820
	5,746
	4,726

	Cost of goods sold
	405
	3,073
	4,252
	3,505

	Gross margin
	992
	747
	1,494
	1,221

	
	
	
	
	

	Administrative expenses
	3,045
	4,924
	3,661
	11,582

	Mineral properties written off
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	Gain (loss) on investments
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	
	
	
	
	

	Loss for the quarter
	2,053
	4,177
	2,167
	10,361

	Loss per common share
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00
	0.01

	 (basic & fully diluted)
	
	
	
	


Previously the Company reported on a semi-annual basis.

5.3 
Dividends 
Any decision to pay dividends in the future will be dependent upon the financial requirements of the Company to finance future growth, the financial condition of the Company and other factors which the board of directors of the Company may consider appropriate in the circumstances.   

5.4    
The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with Canadian

generally accepted accounting principles. 


6. 
Management Discussion and Analysis   
For  MD&A’s, for periods subsequent to the periods reported below,  kindly refer to SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Bird River Mines Inc.

(formerly Bird River Mines Co. Ltd.)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE ANNUAL ENDING JULY 31, 2005
This Management Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") reviews the financial condition and results of operations of Bird River Mines Inc. (“BRM” or the "Company") for the Annual Period ending July 31, 2005.  The MD&A was prepared as of November 24, 2005 and should be read in conjunction with the audited annual financial statements for the years ended July 31, 2005 and 2004, including the notes thereto, and the MD&A for that prior period.

The Company’s financial statements were restated as of August 1, 2002 to reflect the abandonment of certain exploration properties.  As a result of this restatement, the deficit for August 1, 2002 has been increased by $170,321 from the amount previously reported of $145,337 to $315,658.  The previously reported unadjusted financial statements for the years ending July 31, 2003 and 2002 are incorporated as attachments in the MD&A for the Annual Period ending July 31, 2004 for reference purposes.

BRM’s financial statements will be filed on the SEDAR website www.sedar.com where additional disclosure relating to the Company will also be located.

Overview

Bird River Mines Inc. is a mineral exploration company that is in the process of re-activation and it is not currently listed on a stock exchange.  BRM has recently been conditionally approved for listing on the CNQ Exchange.  The Company holds an exploration property, known as the Ore Fault, which is located in the Bird River Sill area of Manitoba, approximately 125 km northeast of Winnipeg.  The original 322-hectare property is prospective for base and PGM metals and is the Company’s primary exploration property.  On May 16, 2005, the Company conditionally acquired an adjacent 124-hectare property comprised of 3-claims, known as the Lotus Property.
BRM also holds a Quarry Lease, located 85 km southwest of Winnipeg near Miami, Manitoba.  The 8 hectare lease hosts a narrow bed of bentonite. 

The Company also engages in secondary activities, from time to time, involving the purchase or acquisition of certain industrial minerals – typically diatomaceous earth and bentonite – for distribution and re-sale or for use in an abandoned water well sealing operation.

Until the past two years, the junior mineral resource industry experienced an extended period of difficult conditions when it was not possible to finance a full program to re-active the Company.  In 1997, the current management of BRM commenced the re-activation of the Company which resulted in the Manitoba Securities Commission lifting a decades-old cease trading order, on August 10, 1998.  At that time the Company held a 20% indirect interest in the Ore Fault Property.  In June of 2000, BRM acquired a Quarry Lease near Miami, Manitoba.  On February 13, 2001, the Company - previously Bird River Mines Co. Ltd. – changed its name to Bird River Mines Inc.  On January 12, 2004, BRM acquired the other 80% interest in the Ore Fault Property, contingent upon the Company listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.  On July 31, 2004, BRM completed a shares-for-debt transaction.  During 2004, management initiated a NI-43-101 report to qualify its Ore Fault Property for an exchange listing.  Effective November 1, 2004, an independent financial consultant was retained to assist in completion of this re-activation initiative.  On January 31, 2005, an initial private placement of $80,000 was completed to assist in financing the costs of re-activation.  On May 16, 2005, the Company conditionally acquired the 124-hectare Lotus Property which is located adjacent to its Ore Fault Property on the Bird River Sill.  BRM filed a NI-43-101 Report on its Ore Fault Property with SEDAR on August 9, 2005.  The CNQ Exchange conditionally approved Bird River Mines Inc. for listing on November 1, 2005. 

Results of Operations

The net loss for the 12-months ended July 31, 2005 was $52,764 as compared to $18,758 for the 12-months ended July 31, 2004.  The increase of $34,006 in the net loss for the year is primarily attributable to an increase in gross profit of $7,759 offset by increases in professional fees of $28,386 and stock transfer & filing fees of $4,373 due to corporate re-activation activities; non-cash stock-based compensation of $2,220;  and transportation & freight of $4,923 reflecting higher sales as well as the re-location of inventories to new leased warehouse space during the third quarter.  It is anticipated that professional fees will continue to be a significant expense for the Company, at least during the period of BRM’s re-activation.  BRM started paying Stock transfer & filing fees in the third quarter and will continue to do so in the future.  As stock options pay an important role in the Company’s compensation, stock-based compensation will also continue to be a material expense. Revenue for the 12-months was $29,201 compared to $15,689 for the prior year.  The significant improvement in sales is not anticipated to continue.  Sales in the most recent quarter were $5,622 compared to $4,726 for the prior year.  Exploration expenditures for the year to date totaled $9,223 (2004-nil) and were incurred for the preparation of a NI-43-101 Report on the Ore Fault Property.  

The net loss for the year ended July 31, 2004 was $18,758 as compared to $16,301 for the 12-months ended July 31, 2003.  The increase of $2,457 in the net loss for the year is primarily attributable to an increase in professional fees of $5,110 (2003-nil) due to corporate re-activation activities, primarily accounting and audit.  This was partly offset by a $2,700 increase in gross margin from industrial mineral sales, a secondary activity.  Exploration expenditures in the 12-months totaled nil (2003-nil).     

For the year ended July, 2003 the net loss was $16,301 (restated from $16,299) as compared to $24,073 for the year ended July 31, 2002.  The decrease is primarily attributable to a $7,104 reduction in automotive expenses; a $2,005 decline in repairs & maintenance and a $3,742 reduction in wages & benefits which is offset by a one-time gain of $8,839 on the sale of equipment.

Currently, BRM’s property portfolio consists of one primary exploration property, known as the Ore Fault, which is located in the Bird River Sill area of Manitoba, about 125 kilometres northeast of Winnipeg.  The original 322-hectare property is prospective for base and PGM metals. The ownership of this property is contingent upon the Company listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.  On May 16, 2005, the Company expanded its Ore Fault Property by conditionally acquiring an adjacent 124-hectare property comprised of 3-claims, known as the Lotus Property.  BRM filed a NI-43-101 Report on its Ore Fault Property with SEDAR on August 9, 2005.  The Company also holds a Quarry License providing the right to exploit a bentonite bed located near Miami, Manitoba, 85 kilometres southwest of Winnipeg. 

The Company also engages in secondary activities, from time to time, involving the purchase or acquisition of certain industrial minerals – typically diatomaceous earth and bentonite – for distribution and re-sale or, more recently, for use in an abandoned water well sealing operation.  The Company’s revenue and gross margin are attributable to these secondary activities.
In 2002, the Company commenced the distribution of an absorbent, diatomaceous earth, achieving sales of $2,386.  In 2003 and 2004 sales increased to $7,466 and $15,689, respectively.  BRM benefited from a positive gross margin on sales throughout this period.

In the quarter ending October 31, 2004, the Company was, for the first time, active in sealing abandoned water wells in Manitoba.  BRM’s gross revenue form this activity was $8,890.  This activity can generally only be conducted during the summer months and adverse weather can limit operations.  During the May-July quarter, the Company did not have any well sealing revenue as municipal budgets were strained from flood conditions earlier in the year.  Subsequently after the July 31st year end, BRM sealed four wells, two of which were done as paid demonstrations.  

In the quarter ending July 31, 2005, revenue was $5,622 compared with $4,726 in the prior year.  All of this revenue was attributable to the distribution of absorbent industrial minerals.  Sales in the third quarter were negatively affected by the re-location of the Company’s inventories to new leased warehouse facilities.  During fiscal 2005, the sale of absorbents generated gross revenue of $2,945 during the first quarter;  $7,260 during the second quarter;  and $4,484 during the third quarter. 

In the quarter ending July 31, 2005, the net loss was $23,183 as compared to $10,361 a year earlier.  The increase of $12,822 in the net loss for the quarter was primarily attributable to a $11,276 increase in professional fees along with other expenses associated with the Company’s re-activation.

On January 12, 2004, the Company acquired 80% of the issued and outstanding shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. from Myriad Resources Inc.  As consideration, BRM issued 400,000 common shares valued at $0.05 per share plus a $3,000 note payable due on January 15, 2005 for total consideration of $23,000.  BRM already owned the other 20% of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. and this company is now consolidated in BRM’s financials.  The Ore Fault Property is owned by 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  The acquisition of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. is contingent upon the BRM listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.

At the Manitoba Mining and Mineral Convention on November 19, 2004, Dr. Peter Theyer of the Manitoba Geological Survey presented new evidence of nickel-PGM mineralization being remobilized out of the Bird River Sill.  At Mustang Minerals Corp.’s Maskwa Pit, which was last mined in the mid-1970’s, a recent analysis of 14 samples of pyrrhotite-rich “waste rock” assayed on average 6.65 % Nickel, 0.09% Copper, 4.0gpt Palladium, and 1.6gpt Platinum.  The Maskwa Pit is approximately 2 km southeast of BRM’s Ore Fault Property.  Dr. Theyer specifically identified the Ore Fault Property as a sulphide occurrence on the Bird River Sill that, in light of this new discovery, merited renewed attention.
On January 31, 2005, Mr. Carl Chester was appointed a Vice-President of BRM.

On May 16, 2005, the Company conditionally acquired the 124-hectare Lotus Property comprised of 3-claims.  This property is located immediately adjacent to the Ore Fault Property.  As consideration, BRM issued 50,000 common shares valued at $0.05 per share and paid $5,000 cash for total consideration of $7,500.

A Qualifying NI-43-101 Report on the Ore Fault Property was filed with SEDAR on August 9, 2005.

The Company is continuing to assess other potential property acquisitions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
At July 31, 2005, the Company had working capital of $19,802 which reflects an improvement of $19,737 since the year-end.  The improvement in working capital during the year to date is primarily a result of an $80,000 private placement offset by the Company’s re-activation activities.

The Company also had long-term advances payable of $26,686.

The Company is in the process of re-activation.  This initiative, which should be completed over the next few months included:  a name change to Bird River Mines Inc.;  a shares-for-debt transaction;  a qualifying property acquisition;  and the SEDAR-filing of a NI-43-101 qualifying report.  The CNQ Exchange, on November 1, 2005, conditionally approved Bird River Mines Inc. for listing subject to, among other requirements, BRM raising additional working capital.

On October 15, 2003, the Company issued 10,000 common shares in exchange for certain goods and services, pertaining to its quarry lease, which were valued at $500.  

On January 12, 2004 the Company acquired 80% of the issued and outstanding shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. from Myriad Resources Inc.  As consideration, BRM issued 400,000 common shares valued at $0.05 per share plus a $3,000 note payable due on January 15, 2005 for total consideration of $23,000.  BRM already owned the other 20% of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. and this company is now consolidated in BRM’s financials.  The Ore Fault Property is owned by 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  The acquisition of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. is contingent upon the BRM listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.  The $3,000 note was paid in full on December 21, 2004.

On July 31, 2004, the Company issued 564,300 shares as settlement of a $28,300 indebtedness to a director of the Company.  

On January 31, 2005, the Company completed an $80,000 private placement of 1,600,000 units at a price of $0.05 per unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one common share purchase warrant, exercisable at $0.05 per share, for a two year period ending January 31, 2007. 

On March 15, 2005, 60,000 stock options were exercised at $0.05 per common share.

On May 16, 2005, the Company conditionally acquired the Lotus Property in consideration for $5,000 and 50,000 common shares.  The transaction is contingent on certain other conditions.

On June 28, 2005,  140,000 stock options were exercised at $0.05 per common share.

The CNQ Exchange, on November 1, 2005, conditionally approved Bird River Mines Inc. for listing subject to, among other requirements, BRM raising additional working capital.

The Company needs to complete one or more financings in order to complete its re-activation initiative; advance its exploration properties; and restore its working capital.  Equity financing activities will remain the single major source of cash flow for the Company, as the Company is still in the development stage without revenues from operations.
Share Capitalization
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares of which 4,421,055 were outstanding as at July 31, 2004 and 6,271,058 as at July 31, 2005.  At November 24, 2005, there were  6,271,058 common shares outstanding.  As at November 24, 2005, the Company had 1,600,000 common share purchase warrants, exercisable at $0.05 per share, for a two year period ending January 31, 2007, outstanding.

As at July 31, 2005, BRM also had outstanding 300,000 incentive stock options exercisable at $0.10 per common share until May 29, 2008.

Subsequent to the quarter’s end on October 24, 2005, the Company awarded 600,000 incentive stock options to officers and directors of the Company and 100,000 incentive stock options to a consultant.  One-half of these stock options are exercisable into common shares at $0.10 per share for a term expiring October 31, 2007 and one-half of these stock options are exercisable into common shares at $0.20 per share for a term expiring October 31, 2008.

Currently there are 8,871,058 common shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis, including all shares reserved for issuance from the exercise of options and warrants.

Selected Annual Information

The following selected financial information is derived from the financial statements of the Company and should be read in conjunction with such statements, including the notes thereto:
	Statement of Operations and Deficit Data
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Audited for the Year ending July 31
	2005
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	($)
	
	($)
	
	($)

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Revenue – other
	29,201
	
	15,689
	    
	7,466

	Cost of goods sold
	16,988
	
	11,235
	
	5,712

	Gross margin
	12,213
	
	4,454
	
	1,754

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Administrative expense
	64,977
	
	23,212
	
	18,055

	Mineral properties written off
	Nil
	
	Nil
	
	Nil*

	Gain (loss) on sale of equipment
	Nil
	
	Nil
	
	Nil    

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Loss for the year
	52,764
	
	18,758
	
	16,301

	Loss per Common Share
	0.01
	
	0.01
	
	0.01

	(basic and fully diluted)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Balance Sheet Data
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Audited for the Year ending July 31
	2005
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	($)
	
	($)
	
	($)

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total Assets
	229,520
	
	182,024
	
	155,216

	   - prior to restatement
	
	
	
	
	325,537

	Long term liabilities
	26,686
	
	26,686
	
	48,041

	Total liabilities
	53,213
	
	47,673
	
	50,908

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash Dividends
	Nil
	
	Nil
	
	Nil


Quarterly Information
The following is a summary of selected financial information of the Company for the quarterly periods indicated:

	2005 Unaudited
	1st Quarter
	2nd Quarter
	3rd Quarter
	4th Quarter

	
	($)
	($)
	($)
	($)

	Revenue – other
	11,835
	7,260
	4,484
	5,622

	Cost of goods sold
	7,466
	1,974
	2,836
	4,712

	Gross margin
	4,369
	5,286
	1,648
	910

	
	
	
	
	

	Administrative expenses
	4,369
	20,095
	16,420
	24,093

	Mineral properties written off
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	Gain (loss) on investments
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	
	
	
	
	

	Loss for the quarter
	Nil
	14,809
	14,772
	23,183

	Loss per common share
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	 (basic & fully diluted)
	
	
	
	

	2004 Unaudited
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Revenue – other
	1,397
	3,820
	5,746
	4,726

	Cost of goods sold
	405
	3,073
	4,252
	3,505

	Gross margin
	992
	747
	1,494
	1,221

	
	
	
	
	

	Administrative expenses
	3,045
	4,924
	3,661
	11,582

	Mineral properties written off
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	Gain (loss) on investments
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	
	
	
	
	

	Loss for the quarter
	2,053
	4,177
	2,167
	10,361

	Loss per common share
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00
	0.01

	 (basic & fully diluted)
	
	
	
	


Transactions with Related Parties

The following is a summary of the related party transactions of the Company during the financial year s ended July 31, 2005 and July 31, 2004:

Balances due to related parties, if any, are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.  The basis of compensation to related parties reflects market or below-market rates for similar services.

On July 31, 2004 the Company issued 564,300 common shares as settlement for $28,300 of indebtedness to a director in a shares-for-debt transaction that was previously approved by shareholders.

During the 12-months ending July 31, 2005, there were no related party transactions.  Three insiders participated in the private placement of January 31, 2005.

Changes in Accounting Policies

In 2003, the Company adopted, on a prospective basis, the fair value method of accounting for all stock option awards. Under this method the Company recognizes a compensation expense for all stock options awarded since July 31, 2003, based on the fair value of the options on the date of grant, which is determined by using an option-pricing model.  No compensation expense has been recorded for stock options issued before August 1, 2003.  No stock options were granted during 2004.  In the 2005 fiscal year, stock-based compensation expense totaled $2,220.  As the Company relies on incentive stock options as a primary means of compensating its officers and directors, the effect of this policy will be to materially increase compensation costs in the future.  An option-pricing model must be used to estimate the average fair value of stock options as a non-cash compensation expense.  Option-pricing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the value of the Company’s stock options.   

Risks and Uncertainties

Mineral exploration is a speculative venture.  There is no certainty that expenditure on exploration and development will result in the discovery of an economic ore body.  At the present time, the Company does not hold any interest in a mining property in production.  The Company's viability and potential success lie in its ability to develop, exploit and generate revenue out of mineral deposits. Revenues, profitability and cash flow from any future mining operations involving the Company will be influenced by precious and/or base metal prices and by the relationship of such prices to production costs.  Such prices have fluctuated widely and are affected by numerous factors beyond the Company's control. 

The Company has limited financial resources and there is no assurance that additional funding will be available to it for further exploration and development of its projects or to fulfill its obligations under applicable agreements.  There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain adequate financing in the future or that the terms of such financing will be favourable.  Failure to obtain such additional financing could result in delay or indefinite postponement of further exploration and development of the property interests of the Company with the possible dilution or loss of such interests.

BRM is very dependent upon the personal efforts and commitment of its existing management who are not full-time employees of the Company.  To the extent that management’s services would be unavailable for any reason, the Company’s operations could be disrupted. 

Disclosure Controls

BRM is a relatively small public company with five directors, and three non-full-time officers that has three properties and, from time to time, utilizes outside independent geological consultants.  All new financial disclosure is reviewed by management, the audit committee and the board of directors prior to dissemination.  The Company has an audit committee charter and the audit committee meets with the Company’s auditor independent of management.  All new disclosure pertaining to resource properties is National Instrument 43-101 compliant and reviewed by the Qualified Person responsible for the supervision of the technical information being reported upon and management, prior to dissemination.  The Company does not currently have a formal disclosure policy.  Management believes that at its current stage of development the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective at this time.
Forward Looking Statements

This MD&A includes certain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legislation. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in this MD&A that address activities, events or developments that the Company expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future, including such things as future business strategy, competitive strengths, goals, expansion and growth of the Company's businesses, operations, plans and other such matters are forward-looking statements. When used in this MD&A, the words "estimate", "plan", "anticipate", "expect", ‘‘intend’’, "believe" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among others, risks related to joint venture operations, actual results of current exploration activities, changes in project parameters as plans continue to be refined, unavailability of financing, fluctuations in precious and/or base metals prices and other factors. Although the Company has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially, there may be other factors that cause results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. There can be no assurance that such statements will prove to be accurate as actual results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated in such statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

(signed) “Jon Bridgman”

Jon Bridgman

Treasurer  & C.F.O.

Bird River Mines Inc.

Winnipeg, Canada

November 24, 2005     

Bird River Mines Inc.
(formerly Bird River Mines Co. Ltd.)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE ANNUAL PERIOD ENDING JULY 31st, 2004

This Management Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") reviews the financial condition and results of operations of Bird River Mines Inc. (“BRM” or the "Company") for the Annual Period ending July 31,2004. The MD&A was prepared as of December 29, 2004 and should be read in conjunction with the unaudited quarterly statements during the current year and the audited annual financial statements for the year ended July 31, 2003, including the notes thereto. 

The Company’s financial statements were restated as of August 1, 2002 to reflect the abandonment of certain exploration properties. As a result of this restatement, the deficit for August 1, 2002 has been increased by $170,321 from the amount previously reported of $145,337 to $315,658. The previously reported unadjusted financial statements for the years ending July 31, 2003 and 2002 are incorporated as attachments in this MD&A for reference purposes. 

BRM’s financial statements will be filed on the SEDAR website www.sedar.com where additional disclosure relating to the Company will also be located.

Overview

Bird River Mines Inc. is a mineral exploration company that is in the process of re-activation and it is not currently listed on a stock exchange. The Company holds an exploration property, known as the Ore Fault, which is located in the Bird River Sill area of Manitoba, approximately 125 km northeast of Winnipeg. The 322 hectare property is prospective for base and PGM metals. 

BRM also holds a Quarry Lease, located 85 km southwest of Winnipeg near Miami, Manitoba. The 8 hectare lease hosts a narrow bed of bentonite. 

The Company also engages in secondary activities, from time to time, involving the purchase or acquisition of certain industrial minerals – typically diatomaceous earth and bentonite – for distribution and re-sale or for use in an abandoned water well sealing operation. 

Until the past two years, the junior mineral resource industry experienced an extended period of difficult conditions when it was not possible to finance a full program to re-active the Company. In 1997, the current management of BRM commenced the re-activation of the Company which resulted in the Manitoba Securities Commission lifting a decades-old cease trading order, on August 10, 1998. At that time the Company held a 20% indirect interest in the Ore Fault Property. In June of 2000, BRM acquired a Quarry Lease near Miami, Manitoba. On February 13, 2001, the Company - previously Bird River Mines Co. Ltd. – changed its name to Bird River Mines Inc. On January 12, 2004, BRM acquired the other 80% interest in the Ore Fault Property, contingent upon the Company listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006. On July 31, 2004, BRM completed a shares-fordebt transaction. During 2004, management initiated a NI-43-101 report to qualify its Ore Fault Property for an exchange listing. Effective November 1, 2004, an independent financial consultant was retained to assist in completion of this re-activation initiative.  

Results of Operations

The net loss for the quarter year ended July 31, 2004 was $10,361 as compared to $9,097 for the quarter ended July 31, 2003. The increase of $1,264 in the net loss for the quarter is primarily attributable to an increase in professional fees of $4,929 due to corporate re-activation activities which is mostly offset by a $1,945 improvement in gross margin and minor reductions in amortization, repairs & maintenance, and transportation & freight. It is anticipated that professional fees will continue to be a significant expense for the Company, at least during the period of BRM’s re-activation. Exploration expenditures in the quarter totaled nil (2003-nil).  

The net loss for the year ended July 31, 2004 was $18,758 as compared to $16,301 for the 12-months ended July 31, 2003. The increase of $2,457 in the net loss for the year to date is primarily attributable to an increase in professional fees of $5,110 (2003-nil) due to corporate re-activation activities, primarily accounting and audit. This was partly offset by a $2,700 increase in gross margin from industrial mineral sales, a secondary activity. Exploration expenditures in the 12-months totaled nil (2003-nil).  

For the year ended July, 2003 the net loss was $16,301 (restated from $16,299) as compared to $24,073 for the year ended July 31, 2002. The decrease is primarily attributable to a $7,104 reduction in automotive expenses; a $2,005 decline in repairs & maintenance and a $3,742 reduction in wages & benefits which is offset by a one-time gain of $8,839 on the sale of equipment. 

Currently, BRM’s property portfolio consists of one exploration property, known as the Ore Fault, which is located in the Bird River Sill area of Manitoba, about 125 kilometres northeast of Winnipeg. The 322 hectare property is prospective for base and PGM metals. The ownership of this property is contingent upon the Company listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006. The Company also holds a Quarry License providing the right to exploit a bentonite bed located near Miami, Manitoba, 85 kilometres southwest of Winnipeg. 

The Company also engages in secondary activities, from time to time, involving the purchase or acquisition of certain industrial minerals – typically diatomaceous earth and bentonite – for distribution and re-sale or, more recently, for use in an abandoned water well sealing operation. The Company’s revenue and gross margin are attributable to these secondary activities. 

In 2002, the Company commenced the distribution of an absorbent, diatomaceous earth, achieving sales of $2,386. In 2003 and 2004 sales increased to $7,466 and $15,689, respectively. BRM benefited from a positive gross margin on sales throughout this period. 

In the Quarter ending October 31, 2004, the Company was, for the first time, active in sealing abandoned water wells in Manitoba. BRM’s gross revenue form this activity was $8,890. This activity can generally only be conducted during the summer months and adverse weather can limit operations. The current government incentive program to financially assist in the sealing of abandoned water wells appears likely to be changed and this change could be detrimental to next summer’s sales. The on-going sale of absorbents generated gross revenue of $2,945 during the Quarter. Sales of absorbents declined as a result of the re-direction of efforts into the well sealing operation.

On January 12, 2004, the Company acquired 80% of the issued and outstanding shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. from Myriad Resources Inc. As consideration, BRM issued 400,000 common shares valued at $0.05 per share plus a $3,000 note payable due on January 15, 2005 for total consideration of $23,000. BRM already owned the other 20% of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. and this company is now consolidated in BRM’s financials. The Ore Fault Property is owned by 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. The  acquisition of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. is contingent upon the BRM listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.

A Qualifying NI-43-101 Report on the Ore Fault Property is currently being prepared. On November 19, 2004, at the Manitoba Mining and Mineral Convention, Dr. Peter Theyer of the Manitoba Geological Survey presented new evidence of nickel-PGM mineralization being remobilized out of the Bird River Sill. At Mustang Minerals Corp.’s Maskwa Pit, which was last mined in the mid-1970’s, a recent analysis of 14 samples of pyrrhotite-rich “waste rock” assayed on average 6.65 % Nickel, 0.09% Copper, 4.0gpt Palladium, and 1.6gpt Platinum. The Maskwa Pit is approximately 2 km southeast of BRM’s Ore Fault Property. Dr. Theyer specifically identified the Ore Fault Property as a sulphide occurrence on the Bird River Sill that, in light of this new discovery, merited renewed attention.   

The Company is continuing to assess other potential property acquisitions, primarily outside of Manitoba.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
At July 31, 2004, the Company had working capital of $65 which reflects a deterioration during the quarter of $6,142 and a further deterioration of $7,946 since the year-end. The decline in working capital during the year results from the Company’s re-activation activities.  

During the quarter ending October 31, 2004, BRM’s working capital improved by $1,257 to $1,322. The Company also had long-term advances payable of $26,686.  

The Company is in the process of re-activation. This initiative, which should be completed later this year, included: a name change to Bird River Mines Inc.; a shares-for-debt transaction; and a qualifying property acquisition. Among other requirements, BRM needs to complete a NI-43-101 qualifying report and raise additional working capital to qualify for a listing on a recognized stock exchange.  

On October 15, 2003, the Company issued 10,000 common shares in exchange for certain goods and services, pertaining to its quarry lease, which were valued at $500.
On January 12, 2004 the Company acquired 80% of the issued and outstanding shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. from Myriad Resources Inc. As consideration, BRM issued 400,000 common shares valued at $0.05 per share plus a $3,000 note payable due on January 15, 2005 for total consideration of $23,000. BRM already owned the other 20% of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. and this company is now consolidated in BRM’s financials. The Ore Fault Property is owned by 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. The acquisition of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. is contingent upon the BRM listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006. The $3,000 note was paid in full on December 21, 2004. 

On July 31, 2004, the Company issued 564,300 shares as settlement of a $28,300 indebtedness to a director of the Company.

The Company needs to complete one or more financings later this year in order to complete its reactivation initiative; advance its exploration properties; and restore its working capital. Equity financing activities will remain the single major source of cash flow for the Company, as the Company is still in the development stage without revenues from operations. 

Share Capitalization 

The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares of which 4,421,055 were outstanding as at July 31, 2004 and December 29, 2004. On July 31, 2004, BRM also had outstanding 300,000 incentive stock options exercisable at $0.10 per common share until May 29, 2008. 

Effective November 1, 2004, a consultant to BRM was granted 200,000 stock options exercisable at $0.05 per share for a period of 8 months and thereafter at $0.10 per share for a further additional 12 months to June 30, 2006. Currently there are 4,921,055 common shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis. 

Selected Annual Information 

The following selected financial information is derived from the financial statements of the Company and should be read in conjunction with such statements, including the notes thereto:  

Statement of Operations and Deficit Data
Audited for the Year ending July 31 
2004 
2003 
2002


($) 
($) 
($)

Revenue – other 
15,689 
7,466 
2,386

Cost of goods sold 
11,235 
5,712 
1,529

Gross margin 
4,454 
1,754 
857

Administrative expense 
23,212 
18,055 
33,769

Mineral properties written off 
Nil 
Nil* 
Nil

Gain (loss) on sale of equipment 
Nil 
Nil 
8,839

Loss for the year 
18,758 
16,301 
24,073

Loss per Common Share 
0.01 
0.01 
0.01

(basic and fully diluted)
Balance Sheet Data

Audited for the Year ending July 31 
2004 
2003 
2002


($) 
($)
($)

Total Assets 
182,024 
155,216

- prior to restatement 

325,537 
334,017

Long term liabilities 
26,686 
48,041 
38,730

Total liabilities 
47,673 
50,908 
43,087

Cash Dividends 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil

Quarterly Information

The following is a summary of selected financial information of the Company for the quarterly periods indicated:

2005 Unaudited 
1st Quarter 
2nd Quarter 
3rd Quarter 
4th Quarter


($)                ($)                    ($) 


($)

Revenue – other 
11,835

Cost of goods sold
7,466

Gross margin 
4,369

Administrative expenses 
4,369

Mineral properties written off  
Nil

Gain (loss) on investment 
Nil

Loss for the quarter 
Nil

Loss per common share 
0.00

(basic & fully diluted)

2004 Unaudited

Revenue – other 
1,397 
3,820 
5,746 
4,726

Cost of goods sold 
405 
3,073 
4,252 
3,505

Gross margin 
992 
747 
1,494 
1,221

Administrative expenses 
3,045 
4,924 
3,661 
11,582

Mineral properties written off 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil

Gain (loss) on investments 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil

Loss for the quarter 
2,053 
4,177 
2,167 
10,361

Loss per common share 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.01

(basic & fully diluted)

Prior to 2004 the Company reported on a semi-annual basis.

Transactions with Related Parties

The following is a summary of the related party transactions of the Company during the financial year ended July 31, 2004:

Balances due to related parties, if any, are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

On July 31, 2004 the Company issued 564,300 common shares as settlement for $28,300 of indebtedness to a director in a shares-for-debt transaction that was previously approved by shareholders.
Changes in Accounting Policies
In 2003, the Company adopted, on a prospective basis, the fair value method of accounting for all stock option awards. Under this method the Company recognizes a compensation expense for all stock options awarded since July 31, 2003, based on the fair value of the options on the date of grant, which is determined by using an option-pricing model. No compensation expense has been recorded for stock options issued before August 1, 2003. No stock options were granted during 2004. As the Company relies on incentive stock options as a primary means of compensating its officers and directors, the effect of this policy will be to materially increase compensation costs in the future. An option-pricing model must be used to estimate the average fair value of stock options as a non-cash compensation expense. Option-pricing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the value of the Company’s stock options.  

Attachment of Annual Financials for the Year Ending July 31, 2003

The Company’s financial statements were restated as of August 1, 2002 to reflect the abandonment of certain exploration properties. As a result of this restatement, the deficit for August 1, 2002 has been increased by $170,321 from the amount previously reported of $145,337 to $315,658. The previously reported unadjusted financial statements for the years ending July 31, 2003 and 2002 are incorporated as attachments in this MD&A for reference purposes. See the financial statements for the year ending July 31, 2003 attached.  
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To the Shareholders

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

AUDITOR’S REPORT

I have audited the statement of financial position of BIRD RIVER MINES INC. as at July 31, 2003 and the statement of operations and deficit and changes in cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall financial presentation. 

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the company as at July, 31, 2003 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

Winnipeg, Manitoba 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

November 28, 2003  

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JULY 31, 2003
2003
2002

A S S E T S

CURRENT

Bank and short term deposits 
$ 2,804 
$ 4,173

Accounts receivable 
768
 -

Prepaid expenses and deposits
2,500 
2,500

Inventory 
4,806 
4,537



10,878 
11,210

LONG TERM INVESTMENT (Note 2) 
200 
200

FIXED (Note 3) 
30,545 
38,693

DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPENDITURES 
283,914
283,914



$ 325,537         
$ 334,017

L I A B I L I T I E S

CURRENT

Payables and accruals 
$ 2,865 
$ 4,357

LOAN PAYABLE TO DIRECTORS (Note 4) 
48,041
38,730



50,906
 43,087

S H A R E H O L D E R S ' E Q U I T Y

CAPITAL STOCK (Note 5) 
436,267 
436,267

DEFICIT 
(161,636)
(145,337)


274,631
290,930


$ 325,537
$ 334,017

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND DEFICIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2003

2003 


2002

INCOME

Gross profit on sales (Note 6) 
$ 1,716 
$ 635

Gain on sale of equipment
-
8,839

Interest 
38 
222



1,754
9,696

EXPENSES

Advertising and promotion 
243 
173

Automobile 
3,844 
10,948

Bank charges 
60 
80

Depreciation 
8,148 
9,278

Office 
954 
1,927

Professional fees
- 
1,475

Repairs and maintenance 
1,386 
3,391

Telephone 
1,290 
1,406

Transportation and freight 
1,771 
1,098

Travel 
163 
57

Wages and benefits 
194 
3,936



18,053 
33,769

LOSS for the year 
(16,299) 
        (24,073)

DEFICIT, beginning of the year 
           (145,337)  
      (121,264)

DEFICIT, end of the year 
         $(161,636) 
    $(145,337)

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2003


2003 
2002

Operations

Loss for the year 
$ (16,299) 
$ (24,073)

Depreciation 
8,148 
9,278

Gain on sale of equipment
 - 
(8,839)



(8,151) 
(23,634)

Changes in

Accounts receivable 
(768) 
-

Inventory 
(269) 
(4,537)

Payables and accruals 
(1,492) 
(7,734)



(10,680)
(35,905)

Financing

Advances from directors 
9,311 
6,979

Issue of common shares 
- 
10,000


9,311 
16,979

Investing

Purchase of equipment
 - 
(6,450)

Deferred exploration expenses incurred
- 
(1,222)

Proceeds on disposal of equipment 
- 
10,275



- 
2,603

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) 
(1,369) 
(16,323)

CASH, beginning of year 
4,173 
20,496

CASH, end of year 
$ 2,804 
$ 4,173

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY 31, 2003

1. ACCOUNTING POLICY

a) Deferred exploration and administrative expenditures

The company is following the practice of deferring exploration and administrative expenditures during the exploration period. These expenditures will be amortized over production if commercial ore is developed or the expenditures will be written-off to deficit if the claims are abandoned.

b) Depreciation

Depreciation of mining equipment is recorded on the declining balance method at 20% per annum. One half the normal rate is taken in the year of acquisition. Depreciation of vehicles is recorded at 30% per annum.

2. INVESTMENT (Cost)


2003 
2002

20 common shares of 241181 Manitoba 
$ 20 
$ 20

Advances to 241181 Manitoba 
180 
180


$ 200 
$ 200

3. FIXED ASSETS

	
	2003
	2002

	
	Cost
	Accumulated

Depreciation
	Net

Book Value
	Net

Book Value

	Mining equipment 
	$ 52,332   
	$ 24,652 
	$ 27,680 
	$ 34,600

	Vehicle 
	4,815 
    
	1,950 
	2,865 
	4,093

	
	$ 57,147    
	$ 26,602 
	$ 30,545 
	$ 38,693


4. LOAN PAYABLE TO DIRECTOR

Without interest and no set terms of repayment. The director has indicated that he will not request repayment within the next twelve months.

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY 31, 2003

5. CAPITAL STOCK

	
	2003
	2002

	Authorized
	
	

	
Unlimited common shares
	
	

	
	
	

	Issued and outstanding
	
	

	
3,446,755 common shares
	$ 436,267 
	$ 436,267


6. SALES

	
	2003
	2002

	Sales 
	$ 7,428 
	$ 2,164

	Cost of goods sold 
	5,712 
	1,529

	Gross profit 
	$ 1,716 
	$ 635


7. OPTIONS

The shareholders have issued options to purchase 300,000 common shares to management exercisable at $.10 per share.

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

SCHEDULE OF DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

AS AT JULY 31, 2003

EXPLORATION AND DEVELOPMENT

Ore-Fault Group



Assaying 
$ 8,122


Caretaking 
955


Diamond drilling 
87,697


Geological fees and expenses 
19,111


Government fees 
108


Supplies and other 
8,959


124,952


Manitoba Mineral Exploration Assistance
(49,265)


Act Grant
75,687

Savant Lake



Assaying 
215


Diamond drilling 
24,908


Equipment rental 
1,060


Geological fees and expenses 
18,020


Government fees 
487


Supplies and other 
712


45,402

Nipigon Group



Assaying 
1,408


Equipment rental
2,500


Geological fees and expenses 
27,127


Government fees 
1,704


Supplies and other 
4,701


37,440

Zig Zag Lake



Assaying 
1,498


Equipment rental 
630


Geological fees and expenses 
25,179


Government fees 
1,401


Supplies and other 
1,217


29,925

Zach 1



Geological fees and expenses 
696


Total deferred exploration expenditures 
189,150

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

SCHEDULE OF DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

AS AT JULY 31, 2003

Brought forward 
$ 189,150

ADMINISTRATIVE


Accounting and legal 
21,932


Bank charges and interest 
16,954


Depreciation 
3,348


Directors', officers' and other remuneration 
27,365


Licences and fees 
10,614


Office and general 
5,604


Printing, postage and brochures 
6,581


Prospectus and share issue costs 
8,419


Supplementary letters patent 
275


Telephone and telegraph 
3,883


Travel 
10,521



115,496


Interest and dividend income 
8,270


Gain on disposal of securities 
462


Option 
12,000



20,732


Total administrative expenditures 
94,764

TOTAL DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE


EXPENDITURES 
$ 283,914

Attachment of Annual Financials for the Year Ending July 31, 2002

The Company’s financial statements were restated as of August 1, 2002 to reflect the abandonment of certain exploration properties. As a result of this restatement, the deficit for August 1, 2002 has been increased by $170,321 from the amount previously reported of $145,337 to $315,658. The previously reported unadjusted financial statements for the years ending July 31, 2003 and 2002 are incorporated as attachments in this MD&A for reference purposes. See the financial statements for the year ending July 31, 2002 below.
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To the Shareholders

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

AUDITOR’S REPORT

 I have audited the statement of financial position of BIRD RIVER MINES INC. as at July 31, 2002 and the statement of operations and deficit and changes in cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall financial presentation. 

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the company as at July, 31, 2002 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Winnipeg, Manitoba 




CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

October 4, 2002

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JULY 31, 2002


2002 
2001

A S S E T S

CURRENT


Bank and short term deposits 
$ 4,173 
$ 20,496


Prepaid expenses and deposits 
2,500 
2,500


Inventory 
4,537 
-



11,210 
22,996

LONG TERM INVESTMENT (Note 2) 
200 
200

CAPITAL (Note 3)
 38,693 
42,957

DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPENDITURES 
283,914 
282,692



$ 334,017 
$ 348,845

L I A B I L I T I E S

CURRENT


Payables and accruals 
$ 4,357 
$ 12,091

LOAN PAYABLE TO DIRECTORS (Note 4) 
38,730 
31,751



43,087 
43,842

S H A R E H O L D E R S ' E Q U I T Y

CAPITAL STOCK (Note 5) 
436,267 
426,267

DEFICIT 
(145,337) 
(121,264)



290,930 
305,003



$ 334,017 
$ 348,845

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND DEFICIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2002



2002 
2001

INCOME

Gross profit on sales (Note 6) 
$ 635 
$ -

Gain on sale of equipment 
8,839 
-

Interest 
222 
2,888



9,696 
2,888

EXPENSES

Advertising 
173 
257

Automobile 
10,948 
4,433

Bank charges 
80 
56

Depreciation 
9,278 
7,254

Office 
1,927
 907

Professional fees 
1,475 
10,804

Repairs and maintenance 
3,391 
6,899

Telephone 
1,406 
1,166

Transportation and freight 
1,098 
-

Travel 
57 
332

Wages and benefits 
3,936 
2,977



33,769 
35,085

LOSS for the year 
(24,073) 
(32,197)

DEFICIT, beginning of the year 
(121,264) 
(89,067)

DEFICIT, end of the year 
$(145,337) 
$(121,264)

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2002



2002 
2001

Operations


Loss for the year 
$ (24,073) 
$ (32,197)


Depreciation 
9,278 
7,254


Gain on sale of equipment 
(8,839) 
-



(23,634) 
(24,943)

Changes in


Accounts receivable
 - 
(2,500)


Inventory 
4,537) 
-


Payables and accruals 
(7,734) 
10,537



(35,905) 
(16,906)

Financing


Advances from directors 
6,979 
2,385


Issue of common shares 
10,000
 -


Province of Manitoba Grant 
- 
2,174



16,979 
4,559

Investing


Purchase of equipment 
(6,450) 
(27,880)


Deferred exploration expenses incurred 
(1,222) 
(6,412)


Proceeds on disposal of equipment 
10,275
 -



2,603 
(34,292)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) 
(16,323) 
(46,639)

CASH, beginning of year 
20,496 
67,135

CASH, end of year 
$ 4,173 
$ 20,496

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY 31, 2002

1. ACCOUNTING POLICY

a) Deferred exploration and administrative expenditures The company is following the practice of deferring exploration and administrative expenditures during the exploration period. These expenditures will be amortized over production if commercial ore is developed or the expenditures will be written-off to deficit if the claims are abandoned. 

b) Depreciation

Depreciation of mining equipment is recorded on the declining balance method at 20% per annum. One half the normal rate is taken in the year of acquisition.

2. INVESTMENT (Cost)



2002 
2001

20 common shares of 241181 Manitoba 
$ 20 
$ 20

Advances to 241181 Manitoba 
180 
180



$ 200 
$ 200

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

	
	2001


	2002 


	
	Cost
	Accumulated

Depreciation
	Net 

Book Value
	Net 

Book Value

	Mining equipment 
	$ 52,332 
	$ 17,732 
	$ 34,600 
	$ 42,957

	Vehicle 
	4,815 
	722 
	4,093
	-

	
	$ 57,147 
	$ 18,454 
	$ 38,693 
	$ 42,957

	
	
	
	
	


4. LOAN PAYABLE TO DIRECTOR

Without interest and no set terms of repayment.

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY 31, 2002

5. CAPITAL STOCK



2002 
2001

Authorized


Unlimited common shares

Issued and outstanding


3,446,755 common shares (2001 - 3,355,465) 
$ 436,267 
$ 426,267

6. SALES



2002 
2001

Sales 

$ 2,164 
$ -

Cost of goods sold 
1,529 
-

Gross profit 
$ 635 
$ -

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

SCHEDULE OF DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

AS AT JULY 31, 2002

EXPLORATION AND DEVELOPMENT

Ore-Fault Group


Assaying 
$ 8,122


Caretaking 
955


Diamond drilling 
87,697


Geological fees and expenses 
19,111


Government fees 
108


Supplies and other 
8,959



124,952


Manitoba Mineral Exploration Assistance
(49,265)


Act Grant 
75,687

Savant Lake


Assaying 
215


Diamond drilling 
24,908


Equipment rental 
1,060


Geological fees and expenses 
18,020


Government fees 
487


Supplies and other 
712



45,402

Nipigon Group


Assaying 
1,408


Equipment rental 
2,500


Geological fees and expenses 
27,127


Government fees 
1,704


Supplies and other 
4,701



37,440

Zig Zag Lake


Assaying 
1,498


Equipment rental 
630


Geological fees and expenses 
25,179


Government fees 
1,401


Supplies and other 
1,217



29,925

Zach 1


Geological fees and expenses 
696

Total deferred exploration expenditures 
189,150

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

SCHEDULE OF DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

AS AT JULY 31, 2002

Brought forward 
$ 189,150

ADMINISTRATIVE


Accounting and legal 
21,932


Bank charges and interest 
16,954


Depreciation 
3,348


Directors', officers' and other remuneration
 27,365


Licences and fees 
10,614


Office and general
 5,604


Printing, postage and brochures 
6,581


Prospectus and share issue costs 
8,419


Supplementary letters patent 
275


Telephone and telegraph 
3,883


Travel 
10,521



115,496


Interest and dividend income 
8,270


Gain on disposal of securities 
462


Option 
12,000



20,732


Total administrative expenditures 
94,764

TOTAL DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE


EXPENDITURES 
$ 283,914

Risks and Uncertainties

Mineral exploration is a speculative venture. There is no certainty that expenditure on exploration and development will result in the discovery of an economic ore body. At the present time, the Company does not hold any interest in a mining property in production. The Company's viability and potential success lie in its ability to develop, exploit and generate revenue out of mineral deposits. Revenues, profitability and cash flow from any future mining operations involving the Company will be influenced by precious and/or base metal prices and by the relationship of such prices to production costs. Such prices have fluctuated widely and are affected by numerous factors beyond the Company's control. The Company has limited financial resources and there is no assurance that additional funding will be available to it for further exploration and development of its projects or to fulfill its obligations under applicable agreements. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain adequate financing in the future or that the terms of such financing will be favourable. Failure to obtain such additional financing could result in delay or indefinite postponement of further exploration and development of the property interests of the Company with the possible dilution or loss of such interests. BRM is very dependent upon the personal efforts and commitment of its existing management who are not full-time employees of the Company. To the extent that management’s services would be unavailable for any reason, the Company’s operations could be disrupted. 
Forward Looking Statements

This MD&A includes certain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legislation. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in this MD&A that address activities, events or developments that the Company expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future, including such things as future business strategy, competitive strengths, goals, expansion and growth of the Company's businesses, operations, plans and other such matters are forward-looking statements. When used in this MD&A, the words "estimate", "plan", "anticipate", "expect", ‘‘intend’’, "believe" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among others, risks related to joint venture operations, actual results of current exploration activities, changes in project parameters as plans continue to be refined, unavailability of financing, fluctuations in precious and/or base metals prices and other factors. Although the Company has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially, there may be other factors that cause results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. There can be no assurance that such statements will prove to be accurate as actual results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated in such statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

(signed) “Jon Bridgman”

Jon Bridgman

Treasurer & C.F.O.

Bird River Mines Inc.

Winnipeg, Canada

December 29, 2004
Interim MD&A 
Bird River Mines Inc.

(formerly Bird River Mines Co. Ltd.)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDING OCTOBER 31, 2005
This Management Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") reviews the financial condition and results of operations of Bird River Mines Inc. (“BRM” or the "Company") for the Interim Period ending October  31, 2005.  The MD&A was prepared as of December 21, 2005 and should be read in conjunction with the related interim financial statements, including the notes thereto, and the audited annual financial statements for the years ended July 31, 2005 and 2004, including the notes thereto, and the MD&A for these prior periods.

The Company’s financial statements were restated as of August 1, 2002 to reflect the abandonment of certain exploration properties.  As a result of this restatement, the deficit for August 1, 2002 has been increased by $170,321 from the amount previously reported of $145,337 to $315,658.  The previously reported unadjusted financial statements for the years ending July 31, 2003 and 2002 are incorporated as attachments in the MD&A for the Annual Period ending July 31, 2004 for reference purposes.

BRM’s financial statements will be filed on the SEDAR website www.sedar.com where additional disclosure relating to the Company will also be located.

Overview

Bird River Mines Inc. is a mineral exploration company that is in the process of re-activation and it is not currently listed on a stock exchange.  BRM has recently been conditionally approved for listing on the CNQ Exchange.  The Company holds an exploration property, known as the Ore Fault, which is located in the Bird River Sill area of Manitoba, approximately 125 km northeast of Winnipeg.  The original 322-hectare property is prospective for base and PGM metals and is the Company’s primary exploration property.  On May 16, 2005, the Company conditionally acquired an adjacent 124-hectare property comprised of 3-claims, known as the Lotus Property.
BRM also holds a Quarry Lease, located 85 km southwest of Winnipeg near Miami, Manitoba.  The 8 hectare lease hosts a narrow bed of bentonite. 

The Company also engages in secondary activities, from time to time, involving the purchase or acquisition of certain industrial minerals – typically diatomaceous earth and bentonite – for distribution and re-sale or for use in an abandoned water well sealing operation.

Until the past two years, the junior mineral resource industry experienced an extended period of difficult conditions when it was not possible to finance a full program to re-active the Company.  In 1997, the current management of BRM commenced the re-activation of the Company which resulted in the Manitoba Securities Commission lifting a decades-old cease trading order, on August 10, 1998.  At that time the Company held a 20% indirect interest in the Ore Fault Property.  In June of 2000, BRM acquired a Quarry Lease near Miami, Manitoba.  On February 13, 2001, the Company - previously Bird River Mines Co. Ltd. – changed its name to Bird River Mines Inc.  On January 12, 2004, BRM acquired the other 80% interest in the Ore Fault Property, contingent upon the Company listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.  On July 31, 2004, BRM completed a shares-for-debt transaction.  During 2004, management initiated a NI-43-101 report to qualify its Ore Fault Property for an exchange listing.  Effective November 1, 2004, an independent financial consultant was retained to assist in completion of this re-activation initiative.  On January 31, 2005, an initial private placement of $80,000 was completed to finance the initial costs of re-activation.  On May 16, 2005, the Company conditionally acquired the 124-hectare Lotus Property which is located adjacent to its Ore Fault Property on the Bird River Sill.  BRM filed a NI-43-101 Report on its Ore Fault Property with SEDAR on August 9, 2005.  The CNQ Exchange conditionally approved Bird River Mines Inc. for listing on November 1, 2005.  Listing on the CNQ Exchange is dependent upon the Company completing a financing.  

Results of Operations

The net loss for the 3-months ended October 31, 2005 was $14,473 as compared to $ nil for the 3-months ended October 31, 2004.  The increase of $14,473 in the net loss for the period is primarily attributable to a decrease in gross profit of $1,271 and by increases in stock transfer & filing fees of $9,127 due to corporate re-activation activities and annual shareholder meeting expenses; and automotive expenses of $1,580.  Stock-based compensation was $266 during the current period and will be greater  through the quarter ending April 30, 2007 as stock options are expensed over their 18-month vesting period.  As stock options pay an important role in the Company’s compensation, stock-based compensation will continue to be a material expense.  It is anticipated that professional fees will also continue to be a significant expense for the Company, at least during the period of BRM’s re-activation.  Revenue for the 3-months was $8,483 compared to $11,835 for the prior year.  Exploration expenditures for the year to date totalled $ nil (2004-nil).

The net loss for the 12-months ended July 31, 2005 was $52,764 as compared to $18,758 for the 12-months ended July 31, 2004.  The increase of $34,006 in the net loss for the year is primarily attributable to an increase in gross profit of $7,759 offset by increases in professional fees of $28,386 and stock transfer & filing fees of $4,373 due to corporate re-activation activities; non-cash stock-based compensation of $2,220;  and transportation & freight of $4,923 reflecting higher sales as well as the re-location of inventories to new leased warehouse space during the third fiscal quarter of 2005.  It is anticipated that professional fees will continue to be a significant expense for the Company, at least during the period of BRM’s re-activation.  BRM started paying Stock transfer & filing fees in the third quarter and will continue to do so in the future.  As stock options pay an important role in the Company’s compensation, stock-based compensation will also continue to be a material expense. Revenue for the 12-months was $29,201 compared to $15,689 for the prior year.  The significant improvement in sales is not anticipated to continue.  Exploration expenditures for the fiscal year of 2005 totaled $9,223 (2004-nil) and were incurred for the preparation of a NI-43-101 Report on the Ore Fault Property.  

The net loss for the year ended July 31, 2004 was $18,758 as compared to $16,301 for the 12-months ended July 31, 2003.  The increase of $2,457 in the net loss for the year is primarily attributable to an increase in professional fees of $5,110 (2003-nil) due to corporate re-activation activities, primarily accounting and audit.  This was partly offset by a $2,700 increase in gross margin from industrial mineral sales, a secondary activity.  Exploration expenditures in the 12-months totaled nil (2003-nil).     

For the year ended July, 2003 the net loss was $16,301 (restated from $16,299) as compared to $24,073 for the year ended July 31, 2002.  The decrease is primarily attributable to a $7,104 reduction in automotive expenses; a $2,005 decline in repairs & maintenance and a $3,742 reduction in wages & benefits which is offset by a one-time gain of $8,839 on the sale of equipment.

Currently, BRM’s property portfolio consists of one primary exploration property, known as the Ore Fault, which is located in the Bird River Sill area of Manitoba, about 125 kilometres northeast of Winnipeg.  The original 322-hectare property is prospective for base and PGM metals. The ownership of this property is contingent upon the Company listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.  On May 16, 2005, the Company expanded its Ore Fault Property by conditionally acquiring an adjacent 124-hectare property comprised of 3-claims, known as the Lotus Property.  BRM filed a NI-43-101 Report on its Ore Fault Property with SEDAR on August 9, 2005.  The Company also holds a Quarry License providing the right to exploit a bentonite bed located near Miami, Manitoba, 85 kilometres southwest of Winnipeg. 

The Company also engages in secondary activities, from time to time, involving the purchase or acquisition of certain industrial minerals – typically diatomaceous earth and bentonite – for distribution and re-sale or, more recently, for use in an abandoned water well sealing operation.  The Company’s revenue and gross margin are attributable to these secondary activities.
In 2002, the Company commenced the distribution of an absorbent, diatomaceous earth, achieving sales of $2,386.  In 2003 through 2005, sales increased to $7,466, $15,689, and $20,311 respectively.  During the current interim period, sales were $6,719.  BRM benefited from a positive gross margin on sales throughout this period.

In the quarter ending October 31, 2004, the Company was, for the first time, active in sealing abandoned water wells in Manitoba and BRM generated gross revenue form this activity of $8,890.  This activity can generally only be conducted during the summer months and adverse weather can limit operations.  During the May-July quarter of 2005, the Company did not have any well sealing revenue as municipal budgets were strained from flood conditions earlier in the year.  During the quarter ending October 31, 2005, BRM had gross revenue of  $ 1,764 from well sealing operations. 

On January 12, 2004, the Company acquired 80% of the issued and outstanding shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. from Myriad Resources Inc.  As consideration, BRM issued 400,000 common shares valued at $0.05 per share plus a $3,000 note payable due on January 15, 2005 for total consideration of $23,000.  BRM already owned the other 20% of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. and this company is now consolidated in BRM’s financials.  The Ore Fault Property is owned by 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  The acquisition of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. is contingent upon the BRM listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.

At the Manitoba Mining and Mineral Convention on November 19, 2004, Dr. Peter Theyer of the Manitoba Geological Survey presented new evidence of nickel-PGM mineralization being remobilized out of the Bird River Sill.  At Mustang Minerals Corp.’s Maskwa Pit, which was last mined in the mid-1970’s, an analysis of 14 samples of pyrrhotite-rich “waste rock” assayed on average 6.65 % Nickel, 0.09% Copper, 4.0gpt Palladium, and 1.6gpt Platinum.  The Maskwa Pit is approximately 2 km southeast of BRM’s Ore Fault Property.  Dr. Theyer specifically identified the Ore Fault Property as a sulphide occurrence on the Bird River Sill that, in light of this new discovery, merited renewed attention.
On January 31, 2005, Mr. Carl Chester was appointed a Vice-President of BRM.

On May 16, 2005, the Company conditionally acquired the 124-hectare Lotus Property comprised of 3-claims.  This property is located immediately adjacent to the Ore Fault Property.  As consideration, BRM issued 50,000 common shares valued at $0.05 per share and paid $5,000 cash for total consideration of $7,500.

A Qualifying NI-43-101 Report on the Ore Fault Property was filed with SEDAR on August 9, 2005.

The Company is continuing to assess other potential property acquisitions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
At October 31, 2005, the Company had working capital of $6,585 compared with $19,802 at year-end.  The decline in working capital during the year to date is primarily a result of ongoing losses reflecting the Company’s re-activation activities.

The Company also had long-term advances payable of $26,686.

The Company is in the process of re-activation.  This initiative, which should be completed over the next few months included:  a name change to Bird River Mines Inc.;  a shares-for-debt transaction;  a qualifying property acquisition;  and the SEDAR-filing of a NI-43-101 qualifying report.  The CNQ Exchange, on November 1, 2005, conditionally approved Bird River Mines Inc. for listing subject to, among other requirements, BRM raising additional working capital.

On January 12, 2004 the Company acquired 80% of the issued and outstanding shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. from Myriad Resources Inc.  As consideration, BRM issued 400,000 common shares valued at $0.05 per share plus a $3,000 note payable due on January 15, 2005 for total consideration of $23,000.  BRM already owned the other 20% of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. and this company is now consolidated in BRM’s financials.  The Ore Fault Property is owned by 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  The acquisition of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. is contingent upon the BRM listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.  The $3,000 note was paid in full on December 21, 2004.

On July 31, 2004, the Company issued 564,300 shares as settlement of a $28,300 indebtedness to a director of the Company.  
On January 31, 2005, the Company completed an $80,000 private placement of 1,600,000 units at a price of $0.05 per unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one common share purchase warrant, exercisable at $0.05 per share, for a two year period ending January 31, 2007. 

On March 15, 2005, 60,000 stock options were exercised at $0.05 per common share.

On May 16, 2005, the Company conditionally acquired the Lotus Property in consideration for $5,000 and 50,000 common shares.  The transaction is contingent on certain other conditions.

On June 28, 2005, 140,000 stock options were exercised at $0.05 per common share.

The CNQ Exchange, on November 1, 2005, conditionally approved Bird River Mines Inc. for listing subject to, among other requirements, BRM raising additional working capital.

The Company needs to complete one or more financings in order to complete its re-activation initiative; advance its exploration properties; and restore its working capital.  Equity financing activities will remain the single major source of cash flow for the Company, as the Company is still in the development stage without revenues from operations.
Share Capitalization
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares of which 6,271,058 were outstanding as at October 31, 2005.  At December 21, 2005, there were 6,271,058 common shares outstanding and 1,600,000 common share purchase warrants, exercisable at $0.05 per share, for a two year period ending January 31, 2007.

As at October 31, 2005, BRM also had outstanding 1,000,000 incentive stock options as follows:  350,000  options exercisable at $0.10 per common share until October 31, 2007;  300,000 options exercisable at $0.10 per common share until May 29, 2008;  and 350,000 options exercisable at $0.20 per common share until October 31, 2008.

Currently there are 8,871,058 common shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis, including all shares reserved for issuance from the exercise of options and warrants.

Selected Annual Information
The following selected financial information is derived from the financial statements of the Company and should be read in conjunction with such statements, including the notes thereto:

	Statement of Operations and Deficit Data
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Audited for the Year ending July 31
	2005
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	($)
	
	($)
	
	($)

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Revenue – other
	29,201
	
	15,689
	    
	7,466

	Cost of goods sold
	16,988
	
	11,235
	
	5,712

	Gross margin
	12,213
	
	4,454
	
	1,754

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Administrative expense
	64,977
	
	23,212
	
	18,055

	Mineral properties written off
	Nil
	
	Nil
	
	Nil*

	Gain (loss) on sale of equipment
	Nil
	
	Nil
	
	Nil    

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Loss for the year
	52,764
	
	18,758
	
	16,301

	Loss per Common Share
	0.01
	
	0.01
	
	0.01

	(basic and fully diluted)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Balance Sheet Data
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Audited for the Year ending July 31
	2005
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	($)
	
	($)
	
	($)

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total Assets
	229,520
	
	182,024
	
	155,216

	   - prior to restatement
	
	
	
	
	325,537

	Long term liabilities
	26,686
	
	26,686
	
	48,041

	Total liabilities
	53,213
	
	47,673
	
	50,908

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash Dividends
	Nil
	
	Nil
	
	Nil


Quarterly Information

The following is a summary of selected financial information of the Company for the quarterly periods indicated:
	2006 Unaudited
	1st Quarter
	2nd Quarter
	3rd Quarter
	4th Quarter

	
	      ($)
	     ($)
	       ($)
	    ($)

	Revenue – other
	8,483
	
	
	

	Cost of goods sold
	5,385
	
	
	

	Gross Margin
	3,098
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Administrative expense
	17,571
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Mineral properties written off
	Nil
	
	
	

	Gain (loss) on investments
	Nil
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Loss for the quarter
	14,473
	
	
	

	Loss per common share
	0.00
	
	
	

	 (basic & fully diluted)
	
	
	
	

	2005 Unaudited
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Revenue – other
	11,835
	7,260
	4,484
	5,622

	Cost of goods sold
	7,466
	1,974
	2,836
	4,712

	Gross margin
	4,369
	5,286
	1,648
	910

	
	
	
	
	

	Administrative expenses
	4,369
	20,095
	16,420
	24,093

	Mineral properties written off
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	Gain (loss) on investments
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	
	
	
	
	

	Loss for the quarter
	Nil
	14,809
	14,772
	23,183

	Loss per common share
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	 (basic & fully diluted)
	
	
	
	

	2004 Unaudited
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Revenue – other
	1,397
	3,820
	5,746
	4,726

	Cost of goods sold
	405
	3,073
	4,252
	3,505

	Gross margin
	992
	747
	1,494
	1,221

	
	
	
	
	

	Administrative expenses
	3,045
	4,924
	3,661
	11,582

	Mineral properties written off
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	Gain (loss) on investments
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	
	
	
	
	

	Loss for the quarter
	2,053
	4,177
	2,167
	10,361

	Loss per common share
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00
	0.01

	 (basic & fully diluted)
	
	
	
	


Transactions with Related Parties

The following is a summary of the related party transactions of the Company during the current interim period and the financial years ended July 31, 2005 and July 31, 2004:

Balances due to related parties, if any, are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.  The basis of compensation to related parties reflects market or below-market rates for similar services.

On July 31, 2004 the Company issued 564,300 common shares as settlement for $28,300 of indebtedness to a director in a shares-for-debt transaction that was previously approved by shareholders.

During the 12-months ending July 31, 2005, there were no related party transactions.  Three insiders participated in the private placement of January 31, 2005.

Changes in Accounting Policies

In 2003, the Company adopted, on a prospective basis, the fair value method of accounting for all stock option awards. Under this method the Company recognizes a compensation expense for all stock options awarded since July 31, 2003, based on the fair value of the options on the date of grant, which is determined by using an option-pricing model.  No compensation expense has been recorded for stock options issued before August 1, 2003.  As the Company relies on incentive stock options as a primary means of compensating its officers and directors, the effect of this policy will be to materially increase compensation costs in the future.  An option-pricing model must be used to estimate the average fair value of stock options as a non-cash compensation expense.  Option-pricing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the value of the Company’s stock options.
Risks and Uncertainties

Mineral exploration is a speculative venture.  There is no certainty that expenditure on exploration and development will result in the discovery of an economic ore body.  At the present time, the Company does not hold any interest in a mining property in production.  The Company's viability and potential success lie in its ability to develop, exploit and generate revenue out of mineral deposits. Revenues, profitability and cash flow from any future mining operations involving the Company will be influenced by precious and/or base metal prices and by the relationship of such prices to production costs.  Such prices have fluctuated widely and are affected by numerous factors beyond the Company's control. 

The Company has limited financial resources and there is no assurance that additional funding will be available to it for further exploration and development of its projects or to fulfill its obligations under applicable agreements.  There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain adequate financing in the future or that the terms of such financing will be favourable.  Failure to obtain such additional financing could result in delay or indefinite postponement of further exploration and development of the property interests of the Company with the possible dilution or loss of such interests.  More specifically, the Ore Fault Property is owned by 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  The acquisition of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. is contingent upon the BRM listing its shares for trading on a recognized stock exchange by February 15, 2006.

BRM is very dependent upon the personal efforts and commitment of its existing management who are not full-time employees of the Company.  To the extent that management’s services would be unavailable for any reason, the Company’s operations could be disrupted. 

Disclosure Controls

BRM is a relatively small public company with five directors, and three non-full-time officers that has three properties and, from time to time, utilizes outside independent geological consultants.  All new financial disclosure is reviewed by management, the audit committee and the board of directors prior to dissemination.  The Company has an audit committee charter and the audit committee meets with the Company’s auditor independent of management.  All new disclosure pertaining to resource properties is National Instrument 43-101 compliant and reviewed by the Qualified Person responsible for the supervision of the technical information being reported upon and management, prior to dissemination.  The Company does not currently have a formal disclosure policy.  Management believes that at its current stage of development the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective at this time.

Forward Looking Statements

This MD&A includes certain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legislation. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in this MD&A that address activities, events or developments that the Company expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future, including such things as future business strategy, competitive strengths, goals, expansion and growth of the Company's businesses, operations, plans and other such matters are forward-looking statements. When used in this MD&A, the words "estimate", "plan", "anticipate", "expect", ‘‘intend’’, "believe" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among others, risks related to joint venture operations, actual results of current exploration activities, changes in project parameters as plans continue to be refined, unavailability of financing, fluctuations in precious and/or base metals prices and other factors. Although the Company has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially, there may be other factors that cause results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. There can be no assurance that such statements will prove to be accurate as actual results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated in such statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

(signed) “Jon Bridgman”

Jon Bridgman

Treasurer  & C.F.O.

Bird River Mines Inc.

Winnipeg, Canada

December 21, 2005     

7.  
Market for Securities  

There is currently no market for the common shares of the Company. 


BRM is a SEDAR-filing reporting issuer in good standing in Manitoba.

.


On February 14, 2006, the Company was approved for listing on the CNQ Exchange.

8.  
Consolidated Capitalization  

At the fiscal year end of July 31, 2004, the Company had 4,421,055 common shares issued and outstanding.

On January 31, 2005, the Company completed an $80,000 private placement of 1,600,000 units at a price of $0.05 per unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one common share purchase warrant, exercisable at $0.05 per share, for a two year period ending January 31, 2007. 

On March 15, 2005, 60,000 stock options were exercised at $0.05 per common share.

On May 16, 2005, the Company expanded its Ore Fault Property by conditionally acquiring the adjacent 124-hectare Lotus Property comprised of 3-claims in consideration for $5,000 and 50,000 common shares.  The transaction is contingent on certain other conditions.

On June 1, 2005, 140,000 stock options were exercised at $0.05 per common share.  

On January 31, 2006, 100,000 Jan-07 warrants were exercised at $0.05 per common share.

On February 3, 2006, 200,000 Jan-07 warrants were exercised at $0.05 per common share.

On February 14, 2006, the Company completed an offering of $93,900 comprised of 469,500 Units at a price of $0.20 per Unit.  Each Unit is comprised of one common share and one-half of one Feb-07 Warrant and one-half of one Feb-08 Warrant.  Each whole Feb-07 Warrant is exercisable into one common share at a price of $0.30 per share until February 14, 2007.  Each whole Feb-08 Warrant is exercisable into one common share at a price of $0.40 per share until February 14, 2008. 

As at February 14, 2006, the Company had 7,050,558 common shares issued and outstanding.

9. 
Options to Purchase Securities  

The Company has an incentive stock option plan which governs the granting of options to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company. As of the date hereof -  February 14, 2006 -  1,000,000 options have been granted pursuant to the plan.

	Description of Stock Options
	Number of  Stock Options outstanding
	Number of quoted securities  issuable upon  exercise

	Stock Options expiring 

May 29, 2008 

@ $0.10 per common share 

- Officers and Directors
	  300,000
	300,000

	Stock Options expiring October 31, 2007 

@ $0.10 per common shares

- Officers and Directors 
- Consultants
	 300,000

   50,000
	300,000

  50,000

	Stock Options expiring 

October 31, 2008 

@ $0.20 per common share - Officers and Directors
- Consultants
	300,000

  50,000
	300,000
  50,000



10.
Prior Sales 

10.1 
The authorized capital of the Company consists of an unlimited number of common  shares without par value of which 7,050,558 common shares are issued and outstanding as of the date hereof – February 14, 2006. 

Holders of common shares are entitled to notice of and to attend all meetings of the shareholders of the Company.  At such meetings, holders of common shares are entitled to one vote for each common share held.  Holders of common shares are entitled to such dividends as the board of directors of the Company may declare out of funds legally available therefore.  Upon liquidation, each common share is entitled to participate equally in the assets of the Company after the payment of creditors.  The common shares have no pre-emptive rights or redemption or conversion privileges.  

During the past twelve months the Company issued common shares from its treasury for cash as follows: 

On January 31, 2005, the Company completed an $80,000 private placement of 1,600,000 units at a price of $0.05 per unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one common share purchase warrant, exercisable at $0.05 per share, for a two year period ending January 31, 2007. 

On March 15, 2005, 60,000 stock options were exercised at $0.05 per common share.

On June 1, 2005, 140,000 stock options were exercised at $0.05 per common share.  

On January 31, 2006, 100,000 Jan-07 warrants were exercised at $0.05 per common share.

On February 3, 2006, 200,000 Jan-07 warrants were exercised at $0.05 per common share.
On February 14, 2006, the Company completed an offering of $93,900 comprised of 469,500 Units at a price of $0.20 per Unit.  Each Unit is comprised of one common share and one-half of one Feb-07 Warrant and one-half of one Feb-08 Warrant.  Each whole Feb-07 Warrant is exercisable into one common share at a price of $0.30 per share until February 14, 2007.  Each whole Feb-08 Warrant is exercisable into one common share at a price of $0.40 per share until February 14, 2008. 

10.3
The Company has no recent trading history.

11.
Escrowed Securities 

None of the Company's securities are subject to escrow. 

12.
Principal Shareholders 

To the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Company, there is no person or company beneficially owning, directly or indirectly, or exercising control or direction over, more than 10% of the voting rights attached to the outstanding common shares of the Company as at the date hereof, except Nelson Shodine who holds 1,748,315 common shares. 

13.
Directors and Officers 

The board of directors of the Company is currently comprised of 5 persons. Each director is elected to serve until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until a successor is elected or appointed. The board of directors has established two  committees, the Audit Committee and the Compensation, Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee. The following table sets out the name, municipality of residence, present position(s) held with the Company, principal occupations over the past five years and the period or periods of service as director and senior officers of the Company for each director and senior officer of the Company.

	Name and Residential Address
	Position(s) with the Company
	Securities of the Company Owned/ Controlled
	Principal Occupation(s) and Employer(s) over Past Five Years

	Nelson Shodine

Rosser, Manitoba
	Director and President & CEO

(since 1998)
	1,748,315 common shares; and 
300,000 stock options
	Businessman

	Jon Bridgman (6) Toronto, Ontario
	Director and Secretary-Treasurer and CFO

(since 1998)
	100,000 common shares; and

100,000 stock options 
	Financial Consultant

	Carl Chester

Ste. Anne, Manitoba

	Vice-President

(since 2005)
	625,000 (3) common shares;

500,000 (3) Jan-07 warrants;

62,500 Feb-07 warrants; 

62,500 Feb-08 warrants; and
200,000 stock options

 
	Businessman and since March 2005, Vice-President of Gossan Resources Limited

	Edward Thompson, Winnipeg, Manitoba


	Director 

(since 1998)
	500,000 (4) common shares; and

100,000 stock options   
	Financial Planner

	Mel de Quadros (7)
Toronto, Ontario
	Director 

(since August 10, 2005)
	Nil common shares; and
100,000 stock options
	 Mineral Explorationist

	Hans Bocker

Alpnach, Switzerland
	Director 

(since August 10, 2005)
	12,000 common shares;
6,000 Feb-07 warrants;
6,000 Feb-08 warrants; and
100,000 stock options 
	 University Professor and business & IR consultant and translator


Notes:

1) All of the above-named officers and directors have held their present position(s) with the same or associated firms or organizations during the past five years.
2) The information as to shares beneficially owned or over which the above-named officers and directors exercise control or direction not being within the knowledge of the Company has been furnished by the respective officers and directors individually.

3) 500,000 common shares and 500,000 Jan-07 warrants are held indirectly through Treasurton Starr Investments Ltd., a company,  60% beneficially owned by Carl Chester
4)  400,000 common shares are held indirectly through Thompson Holdings Ltd., a company 51% beneficially owned by Edward Thompson.

5) The Audit Committee is comprised of Messers Jon Bridgman, Edward Thompson and Mel de Quadros.

6) Mr. Bridgman is a director of E-Ventures Inc. which is an Ontario reporting issuer.   On May 23, 2003 the Ontario Securities Commission issued a cease trade order as a result of its failure to file the required annual returns.   In addition, Mr. Bridgman is also a director of Rampart Mercantile Inc.  The company was suspended from trading on the TSX Venture Exchange for failure to meet continued listing requirements and in April, 2002 the Ontario Securities Commission cease traded the Company for failure to file financials.

7) Dr. de Quadros underwent bankruptcy proceedings in 1998 and was discharged in June 1998. 
Management

Nelson Shodine

Mr. Shodine is formerly a stock broker with TSE member firms, Clearing member and floor trader at the Winnipeg Commodity Exchange until demutalization and switch to electronic trading, Account Executive marketing/advertising consultant, President of Bird River Mines since February, 1998. Reside in the RM of Rosser, MB.

Jon Bridgman

Mr. Bridgman brings over 30 years of investment and financial experience with three major Canadian brokerage firms and a major U.S. Insurance company. Throughout his career Mr. Bridgman has been instrumental in arranging mergers and public offerings for a number of successful companies.  He is co-founder of seven businesses, two of which are now public and has had extensive senior management operational experience. He is a past director of several public and private companies. Mr. Bridgman is President of United Mercantile Inc. a private consulting firm and holds the FCSI designation (Fellow of The Canadian Securities Institute).

Carl Chester

Carl Chester is an independent businessman, based in Winnipeg. Mr. Chester was appointed Vice-President, in January 2005, with responsibilities for corporate development.  Mr. Chester is also a Vice-President of Gossan Resources Limited.
Edward Thompson

Edward L. Thompson is president of a Money Concepts business in Winnipeg, which he opened in 1988.  This business is now affiliated with one of the largest financial institutions in the world – Aegon.  Ed was born and raised in rural Manitoba and in 1967 attained a Bachelor of Science degree in agriculture from the University of Manitoba.  He has since completed the work required for his chartered financial planner (CFP) designation.  He is a past board member of the Canadian Association of Financial Planners ( Manitoba Chapter) and is  currently a member of that organization as  well the Canadian Association of Pre-retirement Planners (CAPP) and the Canadian Association of Farm Advisors.

Mel de Quadros

Management nominated Dr. de Quadros to fill the existing vacancy on the Board. For the past 30 years Mel de Quadros, Ph.D., P.Eng., has been involved in mineral exploration focussed geographically on Canada and the USA and South America. He has been involved in the exploration and development of precious and base metal projects in a wide variety of geological environments, as well as, iron and coal deposits. He has held several positions as an officer, director and as VP Exploration of public companies. Currently, he is a director of Northern Platinum Ltd., Romios Gold Resources Ltd., Consolidated Global Diamond Corp., Xemplar Energy Corp. and Cooper Minerals Ltd. Dr. de Quadros  graduated with a B.Sc in Geology  from the University of London in 1964, a M.S. in Geology from UCLA and a doctorate in Geology from University of Nairobi in 1972. He is a member of the CIM as well as a Professional Engineer in Ontario and B.C.

Hans J. Bocker

Dr. Hans J. Bocker, MSc.Eng., MBA, is a Professor of Management, financial analyst, financial journalist, and a specialist in public relations.  His professional background is in the fields of engineering and management.  Professor Bocker also owns and operates Swiss Am Consult GmbH, a Swiss-based investor relations and business consulting firm.

Conflicts of Interest   

Certain of the directors and officers of the Company may also be directors and  officers of other natural resources companies. Any decisions made by a director or  officer involving the Company are made in accordance with his duty and obligation  to deal fairly and in good faith with the Company and such other companies. In  addition, each of the directors of the Company are required to declare, and refrain  from voting on, any matter in which such director may have a conflict of interest.  

14. 
Capitalization 

	Issued Capital
	
	
	
	

	
	Number of Securities 

(non-diluted)
	Number of  Securities

(fully-diluted)
	% of  

Issued

(non-diluted)
	% of  

Issued

(fully diluted)

	Public Float
	
	
	
	

	Total outstanding (A)
	7,050,558
	9,820,058
	100.0   %
	100.0  %

	Held by Related Persons  or employees of the  Issuer or Related Person  of the Isssuer, or by  persons or companies  who beneficially own or  control, directly or  indirectly, more than a  5% voting position in the Issuer (or who would beneficially own or control, directly or indirectly, more than a 5% voting position in the Issuer upon exercise or conversion of other securities held) (B)
	2,848,315
	4,248,315
	  40.4  %
	  43.2 %

	
	
	
	
	

	Total Public Float (A-B) 
	3,722,743 
	4,622,743
	52.8 % 
	47.1 %

	
	
	
	
	

	Freely-Tradable Float
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Number of outstanding  securities subject to  resale restrictions,  including restrictions  imposed by pooling or  other arrangements or in  a shareholder agreement  and securities held by control block holders (C) *
	  479,500
	  949,000 
	  6.8 % 
	  9.7 %

	
	
	
	
	

	Total Tradable Float 

(A-C) 
	6,571,058 
	8,871,058 
	 93.2 % 
	 90.3 %


* On February 14, 2006, the Company completed an offering of $93,900 comprised of 469,500 Units at a price of $0.20 per Unit.  Each Unit is comprised of one common share and one-half of one Feb-07 Warrant and one-half of one Feb-08 Warrant.  Each whole Feb-07 Warrant is exercisable into one common share at a price of $0.30 per share until February 14, 2007.  Each whole Feb-08 Warrant is exercisable into one common share at a price of $0.40 per share until February 14, 2008.  Insiders purchased $ 27,400 of the placement or 137,000 Units.  A finder’s fee of 10,000 common shares was paid. 

Public Securityholders (Registered) 

Class of Security – Common Shares 

	Size of Holding
	Number of holders
	Total number of  

Securities

	          1 - 499 securities
	44
	7,603

	     5 00 - 999 securities
	52
	27,275

	   1,000 – 4,999 securities
	103
	189,412

	   5,000 – 9,999 securities
	16 
	96,600

	  10,000 – 24,999 securities
	
23
	362,553

	  25,000 – 99,999 securities
	22
	958,800

	100,000 or more securities
	12 
	2,080,500

	  Total
	272 
	3,722,743


Public Securityholders (Beneficial)   

Class of Security  - Common Shares

	Size of Holding
	Number of holders
	Total number of  

Securities

	          1 - 499 securities
	44
	7,603

	     5 00 - 999 securities
	52
	27,275

	   1,000 – 4,999 securities
	103
	189,412

	   5,000 – 9,999 securities
	16 
	96,600

	  10,000 – 24,999 securities
	
23
	362,553

	  25,000 – 99,999 securities
	22
	958,800

	100,000 or more securities
	12 
	2,080,500

	  Total
	272 
	3,722,743


Non-Public Securityholders (Registered)  

Class of Security  - Common Shares

	Size of Holding
	Number of holders
	Total number of  

Securities

	          1 - 499 securities
	
	

	     5 00 - 999 securities
	
	

	   1,000 – 4,999 securities
	
	

	   5,000 – 9,999 securities
	 
	

	  10,000 – 24,999 securities
	 
	

	  25,000 – 99,999 securities
	 
	

	100,000 or more securities
	4 
	2,848,315

	  Total *
	4
	2,848,315


* On February 14, 2006, the Company completed an offering of $93,900 comprised of 469,500 Units at a price of $0.20 per Unit.  Each Unit is comprised of one common share and one-half of one Feb-07 Warrant and one-half of one Feb-08 Warrant.  Each whole Feb-07 Warrant is exercisable into one common share at a price of $0.30 per share until February 14, 2007.  Each whole Feb-08 Warrant is exercisable into one common share at a price of $0.40 per share until February 14, 2008.  Insiders purchased $ 27,400 of the placement or 137,000 Units.  

14.2  Convertible or Exchangeable Securities
	Description of Security  (include conversion/exercise  terms, including  conversion/exercise price
	Number of  convertible/exchangeable  securities outstanding
	Number of quoted securities  issuable upon conversion/exercise

	Jan-07 Warrants exercisable @ $0.05  per common share
	1,300,000 
	1,300,000

	Feb-07 Warrants exercisable @ $0.30 per common share
	   234,750
	   234,750

	Feb-08 Warrants exercisable @ $0.40 per common share
	   234,750
	   234,750

	Stock Options expiring 
May 29, 2008 

@ $0.10 per common share 
	   300,000
	   300,000

	Stock Options expiring October 31, 2007 

@ $0.10 per common share 
	   350,000
	   350,000

	Stock Options expiring 
October 31, 2008 

@ $0.20 per common share 
	   350,000
	   350,000


15.
Executive Compensation
Executive Compensation

	(a)
	Compensation of Officers


During the 12 month fiscal period ended July 31, 2005, the Corporation had four Named Executive Officers, as defined in "Form 51-102F6 - Statement of Compensation" (the "Form") of the Regulation made under the Securities Act (Ontario), namely the President & Chief Executive Officer of the Company; the Chief Financial Officer of the Company; the Secretary of the Company; and the Vice-President of the Company (the "Named Executive Officers").  The Company had no Executive Officers whose total salary and bonuses during the fiscal year ended July 31, 2005 exceeded $150,000.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table, presented in accordance with the Form, sets forth all annual and long-term compensation for services rendered by the Named Executive Officers to the Corporation for the fiscal years ended July 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005.

	Name and
Principal Position


	Year
	Annual Compensation    
	Long Term Compensation
	All Other Compensation
($)

	
	
	
	               Awards
	Payouts
	

	
	
	Salary
$
	Bonus
$
	Other Annual

Compensation
$
	Securities Under Options Granted

#
	Shares or Units Subject to Resale Restrictions

$
	LTIP Payouts

$
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Nelson Shodine

President & CEO
	2005

2004

2003
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

300,000


	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil

	Jon Bridgman

Chief Financial Officer
	2005

2004

2003
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil

	Carl Chester

Vice-President
	2005
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	Edward Thompson

Secretary
	2005

2004

2003
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil
	Nil

Nil

Nil


Notes:

1. Carl Chester became a Vice-President on January 31, 2005. 

2. On October 24, 2005, the directors approved and adopted the recommendations of a Report by the Company’s Compensation, Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee that established a basis for officer compensation once the Company had completed its re-activation.  Annual compensation would be as follows:  as President & CEO - $18,000;  as Secretary & CFO - $2,000;  and as Vice-President - $12,000.  In addition, officers would also be eligible to receive a bonus in certain circumstances.  Bonuses, if any, would be comprised of some cash with the balance to be allocated to the purchase of the Company’s equity securities.  

	 (b)
	Option Grants in 2005


No incentive stock options were granted to officers and directors during the year ending  ending July 31, 2005.

The Company has not established a long-term incentive plan nor granted any stock

appreciation rights.  No stock options were repriced during the year ending July 31,

2005.

Subsequent to year end on October 24, 2005, officers and directors were awarded 600,000 incentive stock options. 
	(c)
	Options Exercised and Aggregates Remaining at Year-end


The following table provides detailed information regarding options held by the Executive Officers as at July 31, 2005. No options were exercised by the Executive Officers during the year ended July 31, 2005.

	
	
	
	
Unexercised Options at
July 31, 2005
	Value of Unexercised

In-the-Money Options at
July 31, 2005

	Name
	Securities

Acquired on

Exercise

(#)
	Aggregate

Value

Realized

($)
	Exercisable

(#) 
	Unexercisable

(#)
	Exercisable

($)
	Unexercisable

($)

	Nelson Shodine,

President, CEO and Director.
	Nil
	Nil
	300,000
	Nil
	Nil

 
	Nil

	Jon Bridgman

C.F.O. and Director
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	Nil


	Nil
	Nil

	Edward Thompson

Secretary and Director
	Nil
	Nil
	 Nil


	Nil


	Nil
	Nil

	Carl Chester

Vice-President


	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil


Stock Option Plan
During the fiscal year ending July 31, 2004, the Company did not have a formal stock option plan.  Shareholders approved a formal stock option plan at last year’s Shareholder Meeting held on August 10, 2005.  Shareholders will be asked to approve a new formal stock option plan at the up coming Shareholder Meeting on January 12, 2006.

The following table provides information as of July 31, 2005, concerning options outstanding pursuant to the Corporation's Stock Option Plan, which has been approved by the shareholders of the Corporation and which is the only compensation plan of the Corporation under which equity securities of the Corporation are authorized for issuance:

	Plan Category
	No. of securities to

be issued upon

exercise of

outstanding Options
	Weighted-average

exercise price of

outstanding Options
	No. of securities remaining

available for future

issuance under equity

compensation plans

	Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders
	1,240,000
	$0.10
	940,000(1)

	Equity compensation plans not approved by shareholders
	Nil
	Nil
	Nil

	Total
	1,240,000
	$0.10
	940,000


(1) Excludes 700,000 options which were granted subsequent to year-end.

(2) Shareholders will be asked to approve a new Stock Option Plan at the Shareholders Meeting to be held on January 12, 2006.

Compensation of Directors
Directors who are not officers of the Company are not currently paid any fees for their services as directors, other than a $100 fee for attendance at Directors Meetings. Directors who are not officers are entitled to receive compensation to the extent that they provide services to the Company at rates that would be charged by such directors for such services to arm's length parties.

Directors are also entitled to participate in the stock option plan of the Company.

On October 24, 2005, the directors approved and adopted the recommendations of a Report by the Company’s Compensation, Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee that established a basis for director compensation once the Company had completed its re-activation.  As a director, each board member would be entitled to an annual fee of $2,000 and as a committee member, each director would be entitled to a fee of $1,000.  No additional fees would be paid on a per meeting basis nor to any Chair positions.  Directors may only take up to 33% of their fees, if any, in cash with the balance to be allocated to the purchase of the Company’s equity securities.  Directors would also be eligible to receive a bonus in certain circumstances.  
16. 
Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers

No director or executive officer of the Company or associate or affiliate of such  director or executive officer is, or at any time during the Company's financial year  ended July 31, 2005, has been indebted to the Company or any subsidiary of  the Company. As well, no such director, officer or associate or affiliate thereof has any indebtedness to another entity that is, or at any time during the said financial year has been, the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or similar  arrangement or understanding provided by the Company or any subsidiary of the  Company. 

17. 
Risk Factors 

Nature of Mineral Exploration 

The property in which the Company has an interest is in the exploration stage only  and does not contain a known body of commercial ore. The exploration and  development of mineral deposits involve significant financial risks over a significant  period of time which even a combination of careful evaluation, experience and  knowledge may not eliminate. Few properties which are explored are ultimately  developed into producing mines. Major expenditures may be required to establish  reserves by drilling and to construct mining and processing facilities at a site. It is  impossible to ensure that the proposed exploration programs on the property in which  the Company has an interest will result in a profitable commercial mining  operation. 

The Company's exploration and, if such exploration is successful, development of  its property will be subject to all of the hazards and risks normally incident to  exploration and development, any of which could result in damage to life or property,  environmental damage and possible legal liability for any or all damage. Hazards,  such as unusual or unexpected formations, rock bursts pressures, cave-ins, flooding or  other conditions may be encountered in the drilling and removal of material. The  nature of these risks are such that liabilities could exceed any insurance policy limits  or could be excluded from any insurance coverage. There are also risks against  which the Company could not insure or against which it may elect not to insure.  The potential costs which could be associated with any liabilities not covered by  insurance or in excess of insurance coverage or in compliance with applicable laws  and regulations may cause substantial delays and require significant capital outlays. 

Whether a deposit will be commercially viable depends on a number of factors, some  of which are the particular attributes of the deposit, such as its size and grade,  proximity to infrastructure, financing costs and governmental regulations, including  regulations relating to prices, taxes, royalties, infrastructure, land use and  environmental protection. The effect of these factors cannot be accurately predicted,  but the combination of these factors may result in the Company not receiving an  adequate return on investment capital.

Additional Funding Requirements 

The further exploration and development of the Company's property will depend upon the Company's ability to obtain financing through the joint venturing of the project, equity financing, debt financing, or other means. There is no assurance that the Company will be successful in obtaining the required financing. Failure to obtain additional financing on a timely basis could cause the Company to forfeit all or parts of its interest on some or all of its properties or joint ventures and reduce or terminate its operations. 

Commodity Prices 

The price of commodities fluctuates widely. The future direction of the price of commodities will depend on numerous factors beyond the Company's control including international, economic and political trends, expectations of inflation, currency exchange fluctuations, interest rates, global or regional consumption patterns, speculative activities and increased production due to new extraction developments and improved extraction and production methods. The effect of these factors on the price of commodities, and therefore on the economic viability of the Company's property, cannot accurately be predicted. As the Company is only at the exploration stage, it is not yet possible for the Company to adopt specific strategies for controlling the impact of fluctuations in the price of commodities. 

Competition 

The mineral exploration business is competitive in all of its phases. The Company will be competing with numerous other companies and individuals, including competitors with greater financial, technical and other resources than the Company, in search for and the acquisition of attractive mineral properties. The Company's ability to acquire properties in the future will depend not only on its ability to develop its present property, but also in its ability to select and acquire suitable producing properties or prospects for mineral exploration or development. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to compete successfully with others in acquiring such properties or prospects. 

Conflicts of Interest 

Certain of the directors and officers of the Company may also be directors and officers of other natural resources companies. Any decisions made by a director or officer involving the Company are made in accordance with his duty and obligation to deal fairly and in good faith with the Company and such other companies. In addition, each of the directors of the Company are required to declare, and refrain from voting on, any matter in which such director may have a conflict of interest. 

Management, Dependence on Key Personnel 

Investors will be relying on the good faith, experience and judgment of the Company's management and advisors in supervising and providing for the effective management of the business and the operations of the Company and in selecting and developing new investment and expansion opportunities. The Company may need to recruit additional qualified personnel to supplement existing management. The Company will be dependent on a relatively small number of key personnel, the loss of any one of whom could have an adverse effect on the Company. 

Environmental Risk 

Environmental legislation is evolving in a manner which will require stricter standards and enforcement, increased fines and penalties for non-compliance, more stringent environmental assessments of proposed projects and a heightened degree of responsibility for companies and their officers, directors and employees. There can be no assurance that future changes to environmental regulation, if any, will not adversely affect the Company's operations. Environmental hazards may exist on properties in which the Company holds an interest that have been caused by previous or existing owners or operators. 

Liquidity; Dilution 

There can be no assurance that an active public trading market will develop following the listing of the Company's common shares on CNQ. Various factors including the Company's and its competitors' exploration results and general economic conditions could cause significant fluctuations in the price and volume of trading of the Company's shares. 

18.
Promoters 

The Company does not have and has not had a promoter during the previous two years. 

19.
Legal Proceedings 

The Company knows of no actual, threatened or pending legal proceedings to which the Company is or is likely to be a party or of which any of its properties are or are likely to be the subject.
20.
Interest of Management and Others in Material Transactions 

Other than as discussed below or disclosed elsewhere in this Listing Statement, no director or officer of the Company or person or company beneficially owning, directly or indirectly, or exercising control or direction over, more than 10% of the Company's outstanding securities, or any of their respective associates or affiliates, had or has any material interest, directly or indirectly, in any transaction completed within the last three years or in any proposed transaction that has materially affected or would materially affect the Company.

On July 31, 2004 the Company issued 564,300 common shares at settlement for $28,300 indebtedness to a director of the Company. 
21.
Auditors, Transfer Agents and Registrars.
21.1
The auditors of the Company are Magnus & Buffie, Chartered Accountants, 1810 – 444 St. Mary Avenue, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3C 3T1.

21.2
The transfer agent and registrar of the Company are Computershare Investor Services  Suite 600 – 530 – 8th Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P 3S8.  Stock transfer services are also available at Computershare’s offices at 9th Floor, 100 University Avenue, Toronto, M5J 2Y1.

22.
Material Contracts

The Company has no material contracts, other than an agreement dated January 12, 2004, with Myriad Mineral Resources Ltd. pertaining to smelter, net smelter and other rights which it retained in the Ore Fault Property when it sold an 80% interest in the property to Bird River Mines Inc
23.
Interest of Experts 

No experts have any interest direct or indirect in the Company's property. 

24.
Other Material Facts 

There are no additional material facts about the Company and its securities that are not disclosed under the preceding items. This Listing Statement contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the Company and its securities. 

25.
Financial Statements   
Audited financial statements for the year ending July 31, 2005 and July 31, 2004 are provided below.  Audited financial statements for the years ending July 31, 2003 and July 31, 2002 are provided above in Section 6 – MD&A. 

Interim financial statements for the periods ended October 31, 2005 and October 31, 2004 are also provided below. 

Consolidated Financial Statements of

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

Years ended July 31, 2005 and 2004

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of

Bird River Mines Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Bird River Mines Inc. as at July 31, 2005 and 2004 and the consolidated statements of operations and deficit and cash flows for the years then ended.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion,  these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company as at July 31, 2005 and 2004 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 


 MAGNUS & BUFFIE

November 24, 2005
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Winnipeg, Canada

Consolidated Balance Sheets

July 31, 2005 and 2004


                                                       

2005


2004

Assets

Current assets:

Cash

$
29,235

$
8,461


Accounts receivable 


1,442


3,162


Inventory


13,152


6,929


Prepaid expenses


2,500


2,500





46,329


21,052


Machinery & equipment (Note 3)


19,120


24,150


Mineral exploration properties (Note 4)


164,071


136,822




$
229,520

$
182,024


Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Current liabilities:   

Accounts payable & accrued liabilities

$
26,527

$
17,987


Note payable


-


3,000





26,527


20,987


Advances payable (Note 5)


26,686


26,686





53,213


47,673


Shareholders' equity:
Capital stock (Note 7)

579,787


485,067


(Deficit)


(403,480)


(350,716)





176,307


134,351


Basis of presentation (Note 1(a))

Contingencies (Note 9)

Commitment (Note 10)



$
229,520

$
182,024


See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

Director _(signed) "Nelson Shodine"  President 

Director _(signed) "Jon Bridgman"  CFO 

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Deficit

Years ended July 31, 2005 and 2004





2005



2004



Revenue

$
29,201




$
15,689

Cost of goods sold 


16,988





11,235

Gross profit 


12,213



4,454



Expenses:
Amortization


5,030



6,396



Automotive


6,078



5,841



Office


2,826



1,511



Professional fees


33,336



4,950



Repairs & maintenance


1,664



392



Stock based compensation


2,220



-



Stock transfer & filing fees


4,373



-



Telephone


1,871



1,443



Transportation & freight


6,778



1,855



Travel


801



824







64,977



23,212



Net (loss) for the year


(52,764)



(18,758)



(Deficit), beginning of year


(350,716)



(331,958)


(Deficit), end of year

$
(403,480)


$
(350,716)




Basic and diluted loss per share (Note 7(e))

$
(0.01)


$
(0.01)



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended July 31, 2005 and 2004



2005

2004


Cash flows from (used in)
Operating activities:
Net (loss) for the year
$
(52,764)

$
(18,758)


Adjustments for   

Amortization

5,030


6,396


Expenses settled by issuance of shares

-


500


Stock based compensation

2,220


-





(45,514)


(11,862)


Changes in the following 

Accounts receivable

1,720


(2,394)


Inventory

(6,223)


(2,123)


Accounts payable & accrued liabilities

8,540


15,091





(41,477)


(1,288)


Financing activities: 

Proceeds from advance payable (Note 7(b)(i))

5,000


-


Proceeds from note payable

-


3,000


Repayment of note payable

(3,000)


-


Proceeds from advances payable

-


6,945


Proceeds from issuance of common shares

85,000


-





87,000


9,945


Investing activities:   

Capitalized exploration expenses

(9,223)


-


Additions to mineral exploration properties

(15,526)


-


Mineral exploration properties acquisition

-


(3,000)





(24,749)


(3,000)


Change in cash

20,774


5,657


Cash, beginning of year

8,461


2,804


Cash, end of year
$
29,235

$
8,461


Supplementary information:

The company did not pay any interest or income taxes during fiscal 2005 or 2004.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

General

Bird River Mines Inc. is incorporated under the laws of Manitoba.  The principal business activities include the acquisition and exploration of mining properties.  The company also engages in secondary activities, from time to time, involving the purchase or acquisition of certain industrial minerals ‑ typically diatomaceous earth and bentonite ‑ for distribution and re‑sale or for use in an abandoned water well sealing operation.

1.  Significant accounting policies

(a)
Basis of presentation


These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.  The going concern basis of presentation assumes that the company will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business.  There is significant doubt about the appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption because the company has experienced significant losses and has experienced negative cash flow from operations over a number of years.


The ability of the company to continue as a going concern and to be able to realize on its assets and discharge its liabilities is dependent upon the company's ability to obtain sufficient funding for its operations and is ultimately dependant on the recoverability of the amounts capitalized to mineral exploration properties.  The company has not yet determined whether its mineral properties contain reserves that are economically recoverable, and accordingly, the success of any further exploration or development prospects cannot be assured.  If the company's exploration and development programs are successful, additional funds may be required, and the company may not have sufficient funds to conduct the mineral exploration required.  The primary source of future funds available to the company is through the sale of additional equity capital, which may dilute the interests of existing shareholders.  There is no assurance that the company will be successful in raising sufficient funds to meet its obligations.  In the event where it cannot meet its obligations, it may lose its properties.  (See Note 9. Contingencies)


These financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going concern assumption were not appropriate.  If the going concern basis was not appropriate for these financial statements, then adjustments would be necessary in the carrying value of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses.

(b)
Basis of consolidation


These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its wholly‑owned subsidiary 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  All significant inter‑company transactions have been eliminated.  (See Note 9. Contingencies)

(c)
Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

(d)
Mineral exploration properties


All costs related to the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties are capitalized.  Amounts reflected for mineral exploration properties not in commercial production represent costs incurred to date, net of write‑downs and are not intended to reflect present or future values. The recoverability of the costs is dependent upon the discovery of economically recoverable ore reserves, the ability to obtain necessary financing to complete development and the development of future profitable production from the properties or realization of sufficient proceeds from the disposition of the properties.

1.  Significant accounting policies (continued)


The costs relating to identifiable groups of property will be written‑down to net realizable value if exploration activities prove unsuccessful or if the groups of property are abandoned.

 (e)
Machinery & equipment


Machinery and equipment are recorded at cost.  Amortization is provided using the following method and annual rates:







Rate


Method



Mining equipment

20%
Declining balance
 


Vehicles

30%
Declining balance


(f)
Revenue recognition


Revenue is recognized when goods are shipped.

(g)
Future income taxes


The company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes.  Under this method, future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.  Future income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantially enacted tax rates expected to be recovered or settled.  The effect on future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period that includes the date of enactment or substantive enactment.

(h)
Stock‑based payments to non‑employees

Stock‑based payments granted to non‑employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services received.  In the event the company cannot reasonably estimate the fair value of goods or services received, the transaction is recorded at the estimated value of the underlying equity instrument.

(i)
Stock‑based compensation

The company uses the fair value‑based approach to account for stock‑based compensation.  Compensation expense is recognized for these stock options over their vesting period based on their estimated fair values on the date of grant as determined by using the Black‑Scholes option‑pricing model.

The fair values of the options issued, if any, are credited to contributed surplus in the period they vest.  When these options are exercised, the consideration paid by employees and the fair value of the options previously credited to contributed surplus are credited to share capital. 

(j)
Government assistance


The company periodically applies for financial assistance under available government incentive programs.  Government assistance relating to capital expenditures is reflected as a reduction of the cost of such property and equipment.


The company did not receive government assistance in fiscal 2005 or 2004.

(k)
Use of estimates


The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of certain revenue and expenses during the year.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.

2.  Acquisition

During the 2005 fiscal year there were no acquisitions.

On January 12, 2004, the company acquired 80% of the issued and outstanding shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. from Myriad Resources Inc. ("Myriad").  As consideration, the company issued 400,000 common shares valued at $0.05 per share plus a $3,000 note payable due on January 15, 2005 for total consideration of $23,000.  The company previously owned the remaining 20% of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. and accounted for this $200 investment on the cost basis.  As a result of this purchase the company owns 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  (See Note 9. Contingencies & Note 10. Commitment)

The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method and the results of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.'s operations are included in the company's accounts from the date of acquisition.  Details of the acquisition are as follows:

Net assets acquired, at fair value:


Mineral exploration properties

$
23,029



Current liabilities


(29)





$
23,000


Consideration given:



400,000 Common shares

$
20,000



Note payable


3,000




$
23,000


3.  Machinery & equipment   




Accumulated
Net

2005

Cost

amortization
book value

Mining equipment

$
52,333

$
34,617

$
17,716


Vehicles


4,815


3,411


1,404





$
57,148

$
38,028

$
19,120




Accumulated
Net

2004
Cost
amortization
book value


Mining equipment

$
52,333

$
30,188

$
22,145

Vehicles


4,815


2,810


2,005





$       57,148


$       32,998


$       24,150

4.  Mineral exploration properties


2005
2004

Opening balance
$
136,822

$
113,793


Acquisition of mineral and exploration properties

18,026


23,029


Exploration expenses

9,223


-


Closing balance at July 31
$
164,071

$
136,822


The company holds an exploration property known as the Ore Fault property located on the Bird River Greenstone Belt, 125 kilometers northeast of Winnipeg, Manitoba.  This 322‑hectare property hosts a small nickel‑copper resource and known concentrations of zinc and cobalt.  It is situated on a major northwest‑southeast trending fault which offsets the Bird River Sill.  The company owns a 100% interest in the mineral claims on this property.  (See Note 9.  Contingencies and Note 10.  Commitment)

On May 16, 2005 the company conditionally acquired the 124‑hectare Lotus property comprised of 3 claims, which is located adjacent to the Ore Fault property.  The consideration for these claims was comprised of 50,000 common shares and $5,000.  The company owns a 100% interest in the mineral claims on this property. (See Note 9. Contingencies)

The company conducted no field work on its properties during fiscal 2005 and 2004 other than the production of the NI 43‑101 report on the Ore Fault property.

The company also holds one Quarry Lease, QL ‑ 1530, located 85 kilometers southwest of Winnipeg near Miami, Manitoba.  The 8 hectare lease hosts a narrow bed of bentonite.

5.  Related party transactions

Advances payable are advances from former directors of the company in the amount of $26,686 (2004 ‑ $26,686). 

On July 31, 2004, the company issued 564,300 shares as settlement for $28,300 indebtedness to a director of the company.

6.
Income taxes


(a)
Canadian development and exploration expenditures:

As at July 31, 2005, the company had $329,461 (2004 ‑ $298,172) of unused Canadian exploration and development expenses available to offset future taxable income of the company.  The tax benefit of these expenses carry forward indefinitely.

6.
Income taxes (continued)

(b)
Losses:

The company has non‑capital tax losses available for carry forward to reduce future years' taxable income totaling $159,239 which expire as follows:


2006

$
1,468



2007


7,897



2008


35,327




2009


14,840




2010


8,089



2014


25,631



2015


65,987

Total loss carry forwards

$
159,239



The company has not recorded in its accounts the potential income tax benefit that may be derived from the tax losses due to the uncertainty that the benefits will be realized.

(c)
Income tax recovery differs from the amount that would be computed by applying the federal and provincial statutory income tax rates of 38% (2004 ‑ 38%).  The reasons for the differences are as follows:


2005
2004

Income tax recovery computed at statutory rates
$
20,100

$
7,100


Permanent differences

(155)


(80)


Temporary differences relating to Canadian 


development and exploration expenditures


4,900


-


Adjustment to future tax assets and liabilities due to change in combined federal and provincial tax rates

-


(2,000)





24,845


5,020

Valuation allowance


(24,845)


(5,020)





$
-

$
-



The components of the company's net future income tax asset at July 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:


2005
2004

Future income tax assets



Property and equipment
$
1,100

$
2,800


Operating loss carry‑forwards

61,000


35,400


Mineral exploration properties


71,700


70,100


Future income tax assets


133,800


108,300


Valuation allowance


(133,800)


(108,300)


Net future income tax asset

$
-

$
-


In assessing the realizability of future tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all the future tax assets will not be realized.  The ultimate realization of future tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.  Management considers the scheduled reversal of future tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

7.
Capital stock

(a)
Authorized

Authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of common voting shares.

(b)
Changes in issued common shares are summarized below:




Number of


Year ended July 31, 2005

common shares
Amount
Balance, July 31, 2004


4,421,055

$
485,067


Adjustment to shareholder ledger


3


-


Private placement of shares (i)



1,600,000


80,000


Exercise of stock options (ii)


200,000


12,220


Shares issued for mineral properties (iii)


50,000


2,500


Balance, July 31, 2005


6,271,058

$
579,787



The weighted average number of common shares outstanding during fiscal 2005 was 5,263,411.




Number of


Year ended July 31, 2004

common shares
Amount
Balance, July 31, 2003


3,446,755

$
436,267


Shares issued for goods and services (iv)



10,000


500


Shares issued for debt (v)


564,300


28,300


Shares issued as consideration for acquisition (vi)

400,000


20,000


Balance, July 31, 2004


4,421,055

$
485,067



The weighted average number of common shares outstanding during fiscal 2004 was 3,675,396.

(i)
On January 31, 2005, 1,600,000 units were issued through private placement at a price of $0.05 per unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one common share purchase warrant expiring on January 31, 2007.  100,000 units were issued as consideration for an advance payable to an individual in the amount of $5,000 and 1,500,000 units were issued for proceeds in the amount of $75,000.  The $5,000 advance from the individual was received in fiscal 2005.

(ii)
During the year the company issued 200,000 stock options to a consultant of the company resulting in a stock based compensation expense in the amount of $2,220 and contributed surplus in the amount of $2,220 based on the estimated fair value of each option on the date the options were granted using the Black Scholes option pricing model.  On March 15, 2005, 60,000 stock options were exercised and on June 28, 2005 the remaining 140,000 stock options were exercised at a price of $0.05 per option resulting in total cash received of $10,000, the elimination of contributed surplus in the amount of $2,220 and an increase in share capital of $12,220.

(iii)
On May 16, 2005, the company issued 50,000 common shares as partial consideration for three mining claims situated in the Bird River Sill area of Manitoba.  Based on the estimated value of the claims, the shares issued were valued at $2,500.

7.
Capital stock (continued)

(b)
(iv)
On October 15, 2003, the company issued 10,000 common shares in exchange for certain goods and services.  The value of the goods and services were estimated to be $500.

(v)
On July 31, 2004, the company issued 564,300 shares as settlement for $28,300 indebtedness to a director of the company.


(vi)
On January 12, 2005 the company issued 400,000 common shares as consideration for the acquisition of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  Some of these shares may be cancelled as described in Note 9.

(c)
Options:

On May 29, 2003, the company issued 300,000 stock options to a director of the company.  The exercise price is $0.10 per common share and the options expire on May 29, 2008.  These options have not been exercised or cancelled during the year and represent the only stock options outstanding as at July 31, 2005.

Pursuant to the new CICA standard of accounting for stock‑based compensation (Note 1(i)), the fair value of all new stock options granted, in the amount of $2,220 has been recorded as an expense in the year.

The fair value of stock options granted was estimated using the Black‑Scholes option pricing model on the date of grant with the following weighted average assumptions:

Expected stock price volatility
77.5%

Expected option life
0.5 years

Risk free interest rate
3.5%

Expected dividend yield
   ‑

Stock price at grant
$0.05

Exercise price
$0.05

Option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected price volatility.  Changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.  Therefore, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the value of the Company's stock options.

(d)
Warrants:

During the year the company issued 1,600,000 warrants.  Each warrant can be exchanged for one common share at an exercise price of $0.05.  The warrants expire on January 31, 2007.  These warrants have not been exercised or cancelled during the year and represent the only warrants outstanding as at July 31, 2005. 

(e)
Loss per share:

Loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year (Note 7(b)).  Diluted loss per share is calculated using the treasury stock method which assumes all common share equivalents, such as options and warrants had been exercised at the beginning of the reporting period of issue and that the funds obtained thereby were used to purchase common shares of the company at the estimated average trading price of the common shares during the year.  The dilution created by the options and warrants has not been reflected in the per share amounts as the effect would be anti‑dilutive.

8.
Financial instruments

Fair value

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and advances payable approximate their fair values because of the short‑term maturity of these instruments or because they are payable on demand.  

9.
Contingencies

(a)
The title of the property purchased from Myriad is to remain in 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. until the company has successfully become listed for trading with either the Toronto Stock Exchange, TSX Venture Exchange or the CNQ Exchange.  In the event that the company does not successfully list its shares for trading with any of the said exchanges by February 15, 2006 the purchase agreement will be cancelled and Myriad shall be entitled to retain 100,000 shares of the company.  The remaining 300,000 common shares of the company will be cancelled and the company will transfer to Myriad 80% of the shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  The mineral claims comprising the Ore Fault property are held directly by 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. 

(b)
On May 16, 2005 the company purchased the Lotus property comprised of three mining claims situated in the Bird River Sill area of Manitoba.  If the company has not successfully become listed for trading on an recognized exchange within 18 months from the date of the agreement the three mining claims purchased will be returned to the vendor and the vendor is entitled to retain the 50,000 common shares the company issued to the vendor as part of the consideration for the mining claims (Note 7(b)(iii)).

10.
Commitment

In the event that the Ore Fault property develops into a productive mine, resulting in the creation of a smelter right for the benefit of the company, the agreement with Myriad allows it to retain a proportion of the interest in any such right.  The smelter right would be negotiated based on generally accepted rates in the industry at that time.

11.
Subsequent events

On October 28, 2005 the company issued 600,000 stock options to officers and directors of the company and 100,000 stock options to a consultant.  The exercise price on 50% of these stock options is $0.10 per share and these options expire on October 31, 2007.  The exercise price on the remaining 50% of these options is $0.20 per share and these options expire on October 31, 2008.

Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of

BIRD RIVER MINES INC.

(Unaudited ‑ Prepared by Management)

For the three months ended October 31, 2005

These interim financial statements have not been audited or reviewed by the company's independent external auditors, Magnus & Buffie, Chartered Accountants.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As at October 31, 2005 (unaudited) and July 31, 2005 


October 31
July 31


                                                       

2005


2005

Assets

Current assets:

Cash

$
10,020

$
29,235


Accounts receivable 


4,615


1,442


Inventory


7,767


13,152


Prepaid expenses


2,500


2,500





24,902


46,329


Machinery & equipment 


18,130


19,120


Mineral exploration properties


164,071


164,071




$
207,103

$
229,520


Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Current liabilities:   

Accounts payable & accrued liabilities

$
18,317

$
26,527


Advances payable

26,686


26,686




45,003


53,213


Shareholders' equity:
Capital stock (Note 3)

579,787


579,787


Contributed surplus


266


-


(Deficit)


(417,953)


(403,480)


Contingencies (Note 4)

Commitment (Note 5)




162,100


176,307




$
207,103

$
229,520


See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

"Nelson Shodine"            Director

"Edward L. Thompson"    Director

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Deficit

Three months ending October 31, 2005 and 2004 (unaudited)




2005


2004



Revenue
$
8,483

$
11,835

Cost of goods sold 

5,385


7,466

Gross profit 

3,098


4,369

Expenses:

Amortization

991


1,258


Automotive

2,516


936


Meals & entertainment


273



-



Miscellaneous

554


72


Professional fees

2,066


1,235


Repairs & maintenance

194


415


Stock‑based compensation [Note 3(c)]


266



-



Stock transfer & filing fees


9,127



-



Telephone

517


333


Transportation & freight

1,067


120





17,571


4,369


Net (loss) for the period

(14,473)


-


Deficit, beginning of period


(403,480)



(350,716)



Deficit, end of period
$
(417,953)

$
(350,716)



Basic and diluted loss per share
$
(0.00)

$
(0.00)



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Three months ending October 31, 2005 and 2004 (unaudited)




2005


2004


Cash flows from (used in)
Operating activities:
Net (loss) for the period
$
(14,473)

$
-


Adjustments for   

Amortization

991


1,258


Stock‑based compensation

266


-





(13,216)


1,258


Changes in the following 

Accounts receivable

(3,174)


(2,189)


Inventory

5,385


2,558


Accounts payable & accrued liabilities

(8,210)


(3,480)


Change in cash

(19,215)


(1,853)


Cash, beginning of period

29,235


8,461


Cash, end of period
$
10,020

$
6,608


Supplementary information:

The company did not pay any interest or income taxes during any of the above reporting periods.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

General

Bird River Mines Inc. is incorporated under the laws of Manitoba.  The principal business activities include the acquisition and exploration of mining properties.  The company also engages in secondary activities, from time to time, involving the purchase or acquisition of certain industrial minerals ‑ typically diatomaceous earth and bentonite ‑ for distribution and re‑sale or for use in an abandoned water well sealing operation.

1.  Significant accounting policies

These unaudited financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements for the year ended July 31, 2005.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for the fair presentation have been included in these financial statements.  Operating results for the three months ended October 31, 2005 may not be indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year ending July 31, 2006.

The Company follows the same accounting policies as the July 31, 2005 year ended audited financial statements.  The significant accounting policies are as follows:

(a)
Basis of presentation


These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.  The going concern basis of presentation assumes that the company will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business.  There is significant doubt about the appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption because the company has experienced significant losses and has experienced significant negative cash flow from operations over a number of years.


The ability of the company to continue as a going concern and to be able to realize on its assets and discharge its liabilities is dependent upon the company's ability to obtain sufficient funding for its operations and is ultimately dependant on the recoverability of the amounts capitalized to mineral exploration properties.  The company has not yet determined whether its mineral properties contain reserves that are economically recoverable, and accordingly, the success of any further exploration or development prospects cannot be assured.  If the company's exploration and development programs are successful, additional funds may be required, and the company may not have sufficient funds to conduct the mineral exploration required.  The primary source of future funds available to the company is through the sale of additional equity capital, which may dilute the interests of existing shareholders.  There is no assurance that the company will be successful in raising sufficient funds to meet its obligations.  In the event where it cannot meet its obligations, it may lose its properties.  (Note 4. Contingencies)


These financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going concern assumption were not appropriate.  If the going concern basis was not appropriate for these financial statements, then adjustments would be necessary in the carrying value of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses.

(b)
Basis of consolidation


These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its wholly owned subsidiary 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  All significant inter‑company transactions have been eliminated.  (Note 4. Contingencies)

1.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)
Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

 (d)
Mineral exploration properties


All costs related to the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties are capitalized.  Amounts reflected for mineral exploration properties not in commercial production represent costs incurred to date, net of write‑downs and are not intended to reflect present or future values. The recoverability of the costs is dependent upon the discovery of economically recoverable ore reserves, the ability to obtain necessary financing to complete development and the development of future profitable production from the properties or realization of sufficient proceeds from the disposition of the properties.


The costs relating to identifiable groups of property will be written‑down to net realizable value if exploration activities prove unsuccessful or if the groups of property are abandoned.

(e)
Machinery and equipment


Machinery and equipment are recorded at cost.  Amortization is provided using the following methods and annual rates:







Rate


Method




Mining equipment

20%
Declining balance
 


Vehicles

30%
Declining balance


(f)
Revenue recognition


Revenue is recognized when goods are shipped.

(g)
Future income taxes


The company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes.  Under this method, future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.  Future income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantially enacted tax rates expected to be recovered or settled.  The effect on future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period that includes the date of enactment or substantive enactment.

(h)
Stock‑based payments to non‑employees

Stock‑based payments granted to non‑employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services received.  In the event the company cannot reasonably estimate the fair value of services received, the transaction is recorded at the estimated value of the underlying equity instrument.

(i)
Stock‑based compensation

The company adopted the fair value‑based approach to accounting for stock‑based compensation applying to options granted after August 1, 2003.  Estimated compensation expense is recognized for these stock options over their vesting period based on their estimated fair values on the date of grant as determined by using the Black‑Scholes option‑pricing model.

The fair values of the options issued are credited to contributed surplus over the period they vest.  When these options are exercised, the consideration paid by employees and the fair value of the options previously credited to contributed surplus are credited to share capital.

1.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j)
Government assistance


The company periodically applies for financial assistance under available government incentive programs.  Government assistance relating to capital expenditures is reflected as a reduction of the cost of such machinery and equipment.

(k)
Use of estimates


The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of certain revenue and expenses during the period.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.

2.  Mineral exploration properties

Balance, July 31, 2005 and July 31, 2004
$
163,974

$
113,793


Acquisition of mineral and exploration properties

-


40,958


Exploration expenses

-


9,223


Closing balance at October 31, 2005 and July 31, 2005
$
163,974

$
163,974


The company holds an exploration property known as the Ore Fault property located on the Bird River Greenstone Belt, 125 kilometers northeast of Winnipeg, Manitoba.  This 322‑hectare property hosts a small nickel‑copper resource and known concentrations of zinc and cobalt.  It is situated on a major northwest‑southeast trending fault which offsets the Bird River Sill.  The company owns a 100% interest in the mineral claims on this property.  (See Note 4.  Contingencies and Note 5.  Commitment)

On May 16, 2005 the company conditionally acquired the 124‑hectare Lotus property comprised of 3 claims, which is located adjacent to the Ore Fault property.  The consideration for these claims was comprised of 50,000 common shares and $5,000.  The company owns a 100% interest in the mineral claims on this property. (See Note 4. Contingencies)

The company conducted no field work on its properties during the first quarter of fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 other than the production of the NI 43‑101 report on the Ore Fault property.

The company also holds one Quarry Lease, QL ‑ 1530, located 85 kilometers southwest of Winnipeg near Miami, Manitoba.  The 8 hectare lease hosts a narrow bed of bentonite.

3.
Capital stock

(a)
Authorized

Authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of common voting shares.

(b)
There were no changes in issued common shares during the first quarter ended October 31, 2005 and the issued common shares are summarized below:




Number of




common shares
Amount
Balance, October 31, 2005 and July 31, 2005


6,271,058

$
579,787



(c)
Options:

On October 24, 2005, the company issued 600,000 stock options to officers and directors of the company and 100,000 stock options to a consultant.  The exercise price on 50% of these stock options is $0.10 per share and these options expire on October 31, 2007.  The exercise price on the remaining 50% of these options is $0.20 per share and these options expire on October 31, 2008.  These 700,000 stock options granted have a vesting period of 18 months with 1/6 vesting every 3 months.  Pursuant to the new CICA standard of accounting for stock‑based compensation [Note 1(h) and (i)], the fair value of all new stock options vested during the quarter ended October 31, 2005 in the amount of $266 has been recorded as an expense in the period.

The fair value of stock options expiring on October 31, 2007 was estimated using the Black‑Scholes option pricing model on the date of grant with the following weighted average assumptions:

Expected stock price volatility


77.5%



Expected option life (years)


1.2




Risk free interest rate


3.5%




Expected dividend yield


-



Assumed stock price at grant

$
0.10



Exercise price

$
0.10



Resultant fair value per stock option

$
0.0343



The fair value of stock options expiring on October 31, 2008 was estimated using the Black‑Scholes option pricing model on the date of grant with the following weighted average assumptions:

Expected stock price volatility


77.5%



Expected option life (years)


2.10




Risk free interest rate


3.5%




Expected dividend yield


-



Assumed stock price at grant

$
0.10



Exercise price

$
0.20



Resultant fair value per stock option

$
0.0257


Option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected price volatility.  Changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.  As a result, management does not believe that the existing models necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the value of the company's stock options.

3.
Capital stock (continued)

(c)
The following table summarizes the outstanding options as at October 31, 2005:



Number
Exercise
Expiry



outstanding
price
date

Directors' options

300,000

$0.10

May 29, 2008

Directors' options

300,000

$0.10

October 31,2007

Directors' options

300,000

$0.20

October 31,2008

Consultant's options

50,000

$0.10

October 31, 2007

Consultant's options

50,000

$0.20

October 31, 2008

4.
Contingencies

(a)
The title of the property purchased from Myriad Resources Inc. ("Myriad") is to remain in 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. until the company has successfully become listed for trading with either the Toronto Stock Exchange, TSX Venture Exchange or the CNQ Exchange.  In the event that the company does not successfully list its shares for trading with any of the said exchanges by February 15, 2006 the purchase agreement will be cancelled and Myriad shall be entitled to retain 100,000 shares of the company.  The remaining 300,000 common shares of the company will be cancelled and the company will transfer to Myriad 80% of the shares of 2411181 Manitoba Ltd.  The mineral claims comprising the Ore Fault property are held directly by 2411181 Manitoba Ltd. 

(b)
On May 16, 2005 the company purchased the Lotus property comprised of three mining claims situated in the Bird River Sill area of Manitoba.  If the company has not successfully become listed for trading on an recognized exchange within 18 months from the date of the agreement the three mining claims purchased will be returned to the vendor and the vendor is entitled to retain the 50,000 common shares the company issued to the vendor as part of the consideration for the mining claims.

5.
Commitment

In the event that the Bird River property develops into a productive mine, resulting in the creation of a smelter right for the benefit of the company, the Myriad agreement allows it to retain a proportion of the interest in any such right.  The smelter right would be negotiated based on generally accepted rates in the industry at that time.

Intentionally blank
CERTIFICATE OF THE ISSUER 

Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, Bird River Mines Inc. hereby applies for the listing of the above mentioned securities on CNQ. The foregoing contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material information relating to Bird River Mines Inc.  It contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to prevent a statement that is made from being false or misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. 

Dated at Winnipeg this 14th day of  February, 2006. 

"Signed" 




"Signed"

______________________________ 
______________________________

Nelson Shodine 



Jon Bridgman 

Chief Executive Officer 


Secretary-Treasurer, CFO
and Director 




and Director
CERTIFICATE OF THE TARGET 

Not applicable
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